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Complainant alleges: 
 

PARTIES 
 

I. Virginia Herold (Complainant) brings this Accusation and Petition to Revoke 

Probation solely in her official capacity as the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy, 

Department of Consumer Affairs. 
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2. On or about August 19, 2011, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacy Permit 

Number PHY 50374 to Cal-Mex Special Services, Inc., doing business as Cal-Mex Pharmacy 

with Olugbenga Solomon Oduyale as President and Pharmacist-in-Charge (PIC) (Respondent). 

The Pharmacy Permit was in full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought 

herein and will expire on August I, 2013, unless renewed. 

3. In a disciplinary action entitled "In the Matter of the Statement ofissues Against 

Calmex Special Services, Inc., dba Cal-Mex Pharmacy," Case No. 4009, the Board of Pharmacy 

issued a Decision and Order effective July 20,2011, in which Respondent's Pharmacy Permit was 

revoked. However, the revocation was stayed and Respondent's Pharmacy Permit was placed on 

probation for thirty-five (35) months with certain terms and conditions. A copy of that Decision 

and Order is attached as Exhibit A and is incorporated by reference. 

4. On or about August 8, 1989, the Board of Pharmacy issued Pharmacist License 

Number 42719 to Olugbenga Solomon Oduyale (Respondent). The Pharmacist License was in 

full force and effect at all times relevant to the charges brought herein and will expire on October 

31,2014, unless renewed. 

JURISDICTION AND STATUTORY PROVISIONS FOR ACCUSATION 

5. This Accusation is brought before the Board of Pharmacy (Board), Department of 

Consumer Affairs, under the authority of the following laws. All section references are to the 

Business and Professions Code ("Code") unless otherwise indicated. 

6. Section 4011 of the Code provides that the Board shall administer and enforce both 

the Pharmacy Law [Bus. & Prof. Code,§ 4000 et seq.] and the Uniform Controlled Substances 

Act [Health & Safety Code,§ 11000 et seq.]. 

7. Section 4300(a) of the Code provides that every license issued by the Board may be 

suspended or revoked. 

8. Section 4300.1 of the Code states: 

The expiration, cancellation, forfeiture, or suspension of a board-issued 
license by operation of law or by order or decision of the board or a court of law, 
the placement of a license on a retired status, or the voluntary surrender of a 
license by a licensee shall not deprive the board ofjurisdiction to commence or 
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proceed with any investigation of, or action or disciplinary proceeding against, the 
licensee or to render a decision suspending or revoking the license, 

STATUTORY PROVISIONS 

9. Section 4022 of the Code states: 

"Dartgerous drug" or "dangerous device" means any drug or device unsafe 
for self-use in humans or animals, and includes the following: 

(a) Any drug that bears the legend: "Caution: federal law prohibits 
 
dispensing without prescription," "Rx only," or words of similar import. 
 

(b) Any device that bears the statement: "Caution: federal law restricts this 
device to sale by or on the order of a __," "Rx only," or words of similar import, 
the blank to be filled in with the designation of the practitioner licensed to use or 
order use of the device. 

(c) Any other drug or device that by federal or state law can be lawfully 
 
dispensed only on prescription or furnished pursuant to Section 4006. 
 

10. Section 4063 of the Code states: 

No prescription for any dangerous drug or dangerous device may be refilled 
except upon authorization of the prescriber. The authorization may be given orally 
or at the time of giving the original prescription. No prescription for any dangerous 
drug that is a controlled substance may be designated refillable as needed. 

11. Section 4073 of the Code states in pertinent part: 

(a) A pharmacist filling a prescription order for a drug product prescribed by 
its trade or brand name may select another drug product with the same active 
chemical ingredients of the same strength, quantity, and dosage form, and of the 
same generic drug name as determined by the United States Adopted Names 
(USAN) and accepted by the federal Food and Drug Administration (FDA), of 
those drug products having the same active chemical ingredients. 

(d) This section shall apply to all prescriptions, including those presented 
by or on behalf of persons receiving assistance from the federal government or 
pursuant to the California Medical Assistance Program set forth in Chapter 7 
(commencing with Section 14000) of Part 3 of Division 9 of the Welfare and 
Institutions Code. 
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12. Section 4081 of the Code states: 

(a) All records of manufacture and of sale, acquisition, or disposition of 
dangerous drugs or dangerous devices shall be at all times during business hours 
open to inspection by authorized officers of the law, and shall be preserved for at 
least three years from the date of making. A current inventory shall be kept by 
every manufacturer, wholesaler, pharmacy, veterinary food-animal drug retailer, 
physician, dentist, podiatrist, veterinarian, laboratory, clinic, hospital, institution, 
or establishment holding a currently valid and unrevoked certificate, license, 
permit, registration, or exemption under Division 2 (commencing with Section 
1200) of the Health and Safety Code or under Part 4 (commencing with Section 
16000) of Division 9 of the Welfare and Institutions Code who maintains a stock 
of dangerous drugs or dangerous devices. 

(b) The owner, officer, and partner of any pharmacy, wholesaler, or 
veterinary food-animal drug retailer shall be jointly responsible, with the 
pharmacist-in-charge or representative-in-charge, for maintaining the records and 
inventory described in this section. 

13. Section 4169 of the Code states in pertinent part: 

(a) A person or entity may not do any of the following: 

(I) Purchase, trade, sell, or transfer dangerous drugs or dangerous devices at 
wholesale with a person or entity that is not licensed with the board as a 
wholesaler or pharmacy. 

(2) Purchase, trade, sell, or transfer dangerous drugs that the person knew or 
reasonably should have known were adulterated, as set forth in Article 2 
(commencing with Section 111250) of Chapter 6 of Part 5 of Division 104 of the 
Health and Safety Code. 

(3) Purchase, trade, sell, or transfer dangerous drugs that the person knew or 
reasonably should have known were misbranded, as defined in Section 111335 of 
the Health and Safety Code. 

(4) Purchase, trade, sell, or transfer dangerous drugs or dangerous devices 
after the beyond use date on the label. 

(5) Fail to maintain records of the acquisition or disposition of dangerous 
 
drugs or dangerous devices for at least three years. 
 

14. Section 4301 of the Code states in pertinent part: 

The board shall take action against any holder of a license who is guilty of 
unprofessional conduct or whose license has been procured by fraud or 
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misrepresentation or issued by mistake. Unprofessional conduct shall include, but 
is not limited to, any of the following: 

(g) Knowingly making or signing any certificate or other document that 
 
falsely represents the existence or nonexistence of a state of facts. 
 

(o) Violating or attempting to violate, directly or indirectly, or assisting in or 
abetting the violation of or conspiring to violate any provision or term of this 
chapter or of the applicable federal and state laws and regulations governing 
pharmacy, including regulations established by the board or by any other state or 
federal regulatory agency. 

15. Section 4306.5 of the Code states in pertinent part: 

Unprofessional conduct for a pharmacist may include any of the following: 

(a) Acts or omissions that involve, in whole or in part, the inappropriate 
exercise of his or her education, training, or experience as a pharmacist, whether or 
not the act or omission arises in the course of the practice ofpharmacy or the 
ownership, management, administration, or operation of a pharmacy or other entity 
licensed by the board. 

(b) Acts or omissions that involve, in whole or in part, the failure to 
exercise or implement his or her best professional judgment or corresponding 
responsibility with regard to the dispensing or furnishing of controlled substances, 
dangerous drugs, or dangerous devices, or with regard to the provision of services. 

(c) Acts or omissions that involve, in whole or.in part, the failure to 
 
consult appropriate patient, prescription, and other records pertaining to the 
 
performance of any pharmacy function. 
 

(d) Acts or omissions that involve, in whole or in part, the failure to fully 
maintain and retain appropriate patient-specific information pertaining to the 
performance of any pharmacy function. 

16. Health and Safety Code section 11153 provides in pertinent part: 

(a) A prescription for a controlled substance shall only be issued for a 
legitimate medical purpose by an individual practitioner acting in the usual course 
of his or her professional practice. The responsibility for the proper prescribing 
and dispensing of controlled substances is upon the prescribing practitioner, but a 
corresponding responsibility rests with the pharmacist who fills the prescription. 
Except as authorized by this division, the following are not legal prescriptions: (I) 
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an order purporting to be a prescription which is issued not in the usual course of 
professional treatment or in legitimate and authorized research; or (2) an order for 
an addict or habitual user of controlled substances, which is issued not in the 
course ofprofessional treatment or as part of an authorized narcotic treatment 
program, for the purpose ofproviding the user with controlled substances, 
sufficient to keep him or her comfortable by maintaining customary use. 

17. Health and Safety Code section 11164 provides in pertinent part: 

Except as provided in Section 11167, no person shall prescribe a controlled 
substance, nor shall any person fill, compound, or dispense a prescription for a 
controlled substance, unless it complies with the requirements of this section. 

(a) Each prescription for a controlled substance classified in Schedule II, 
III, IV, or V, except as authorized by subdivision (b), shall be made on a controlled 
substance prescription form as specified in Section 11162.1 and shall meet the 
following requirements: 

(I) The prescription shall be signed and dated by the prescriber in ink and 
shall contain the prescriber's address and telephone number; the name of the 
ultimate user or research subject, or contact information as determined by the 
Secretary of the United States Department of Health and Human Services; refill 
information, such as the number of refills ordered and whether the prescription is a 
first-time request or a refill; and the name, quantity, strengt.h, and directions for 
use of the controlled substance prescribed. 

(2) The prescription shall also contain the address of the person for whom 
the controlled substance is prescribed. If the prescriber does not specify this 
address on the prescription, the pharmacist filling the prescription or an employee 
acting under the direction of the pharmacist shall write or type the address on the 
prescription or maintain this information in a readily retrievable form in the 
pharmacy. 

(b) (1) Notwithstanding paragraph (1) of subdivision (a) of Section 
11162.1, any controlled substance classified in Schedule III, IV, or V may be 
dispensed upon an oral or electronically transmitted prescription, which shall be 
produced in hard copy form and signed and dated by the pharmacist filling the 
prescription or by any other person expressly authorized by provisions of the 
Business and Professions Code. Any person who transmits, maintains, or receives 
any electronically transmitted prescription shall ensure the security, integrity, 
authority, and confidentiality of the prescription. 

(2) The date of issue of the prescription and all the information required for a 
written prescription by subdivision (a) shall be included in the written record of the 
prescription; the pharmacist need not include the address, telephone number, 
license classification, or federal registry number of the prescriber or the address of 
the patient on the hard copy, if that information is readily retrievable in the 
pharmacy. 
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(3) Pursuant to an authorization of the prescriber, any agent of the 
 
prescriber on behalf of the prescriber may orally or electronically transmit a 
 
prescription for a controlled substance classified in Schedule III, IV, or V, if in 
 
these cases the written record of the prescription required by this subdivision 
 
specifies the name of the agent of the prescriber transmitting the prescription. 
 

(c) The use of commonly used abbreviations shall not invalidate an 
 
otherwise valid prescription. 
 

(d) Notwithstanding any provision of subdivisions (a) and (b), 
prescriptions for a controlled substance classified in Schedule V may be for more 
than one person in the same family with the same medical need. 

(e) This section shall become operative on January 1, 2005. 

18. Health and Safety Code section 11165 provides in pertinent part: 

(d) For each prescription for a Schedule II, Schedule III, or Schedule IV 
controlled substance, as defined in the controlled substances schedules in federal 
law and regulations, specifically Sections 1308.12, 1308.13, and 1308.14, 
respectively, of Title 21 of the Code of Federal Regulations, the dispensing 
pharmacy or clinic shall provide the following information to the Department of 
Justice on a weekly basis and in a format specified by the Department of Justice: 

(1) Full name, address, and the telephone number of the ultimate user or 
research subject, or contact information as determined by the Secretary of the 
United States Department of Health and Human Services, and the gender, and date 
of birth ofthe ultimate user. 

(2) The prescriber's category of licensure and license number; federal 
controlled substance registration number; and the state medical license nwnber of 
any prescriber using the federal controlled substance registration nwnber ofa 
government-exempt facility. 

(3) Pharmacy prescription number, license number, and federal controlled 
substance registration number. 

(4) NDC (National Drug Code) number of the controlled substance 
 
dispensed. 
 

(5) Quantity of the controlled substance dispensed. 

(6) ICD-9 (diagnosis code), if available. 

(7) Number of refills ordered. 

(8) Whether the drug was dispensed as a refill of a prescription or as a 
 
first-time request. 
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I 
(9) Date of origin of the prescription. 

(10) Date of dispensing of the prescription. 

19. Health and Safety Code section 11172 provides that no person shall antedate or 

postdate a prescription. 

STATE REGULATORY PROVISIONS 

20. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1716 states: 

Pharmacists shall not deviate from the requirements of a prescription 
except upon the prior consent of the prescriber or to select the drug product in 
accordance with Section 4073 of the Business and Professions Code. 

Nothing in this regulation is intended to prohibit a pharmacist from 
exercising commonly-accepted pharmaceutical practice in the compounding or 
dispensing of a prescription. 

21. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1717.3 states: 

(a) No person shall dispense a controlled substance pursuant to a preprinted 
multiple check-off prescription blank. 

(b) A person may dispense a dangerous drug, that is not a controlled 
substance, pursuant to a preprinted multiple checkoff prescription blank and may 
dispense more than one dangerous drug, that is not a controlled substance, 
pursuant to such a blank if the prescriber has indicated on the blank the number of 
dangerous drugs he or she has prescribed. 

(c) "Preprinted multiple checkoff prescription blank," as used in this 
section means any form listing more than one dangerous drug where the intent is 
that a mark next to the name of a drug i.e., a "checkoff," indicates a prescription 
order for that drug. 

22. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1718 states: 

"Current Inventory" as used in Sections 4081 and 4332 of the Business and 
Professions Code shall be considered to include complete accountability for all 
dangerous drugs handled by every licensee enumerated in Sections 4081 and 4332. 

The controlled substances inventories required by Title 21, CPR, Section 
1304 shall be available for inspection upon request for at least 3 years after the 
date of the inventory. 

23. California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1761 states: 

(a) No pharmacist shall compound or dispense any prescription which 
contains any significant error, omission, irregularity, uncertainty, ambiguity or 
alteration. Upon receipt of any such prescription, the pharmacist shall contact the 
prescriber to obtain the information needed to validate the prescription. 

(b) Even after conferring with the prescriber, a pharmacist shall not 
compound or dispense a controlled substance prescription where the pharmacist 

8 

ACCUSATION AND PETlTION TO REVOKE PROBATION 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

knows or has objective reason to know that said prescription was not issued for a 
legitimate medical purpose. 

COST RECOVERY 

24. Section 125.3 of the Code provides, in pertinent part, that the Board may request the 

administrative law judge to direct a licentiate found to have committed a violation or violations of 

the licensing act to pay a sum not to exceed the reasonable costs of the investigation and 

enforcement of the case, with failure of the licentiate to comply subjecting the license to not being 

renewed or reinstated. If a case settles, recovery of investigation and enforcement costs may be 

included in a stipulated settlement. 

DRUGS 

25. Ambien, is a brand name for zolpidem, a Schedule IV controlled substance pursuant 

to Health and Safety Code section 11057, subdivision (d), and a dangerous drug pursuant to 

Business and Professions Code section 4022. It is a sedative used for the short-term treatment of 

insomnia. 

26. Hydrocodone/acetaminophen, also known by the brand names Vicodin, Norco, 

Zydone, Maxidone, Lortab, Lorcet, Hydrocet, Co-Gesic, and Anexsia, is a narcotic Schedule III 

controlled substance as designated by Health and Safety Code section 11056(e)(4), and is a 

dangerous drug pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 4022. Hydrocodone is used as 

a narcotic analgesic in the relief ofpain. 

27. Lorazepam, is a Schedule TV controlled substance pursuant to Health and Safety 

Code section 11057, subdivision (d), and a dangerous drug pursuant to Business and Professions 

Code section 4022. 

28. Oxycodone, is a Schedule II controlled substance pursuant to Health and Safety Code 

section 11055, subdivision (b), and a dangerous drug pursuant to Business and Professions Code 

section 4022. 

29. Temazepam, is a Schedule IV controlled substance pursuant to Health and Safety 

Code section 11057, subdivision (d), and a dangerous drug pursuant to Business and Professions 

Code section 4022. 
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FACTUAL ALLEGATIONS 
 

30. On or about January 28,2013, Board inspectors performed a routine inspection of 

Cal-Mex Pharmacy located at 337 Paulin Avenue, Ste. lA, in Calexico, California. The President 

and Pharmacist-in-Charge (PIC) Oduyale was present during the inspection. During the 

inspection, the Board inspectors reviewed hundreds of prescriptions, invoices from wholesalers, 

and the quality assurance binder, among other items. Following the inspection, Board inspectors 

continued the investigation of Respondents by interviewing and obtaining statements from 

pharmacy personnel, including Respondent PIC Oduyale, and reviewing additional 

documentation provided by Respondents. 

31. Respondent PIC Oduyale provided the Board inspector with an audit of the 

hydrocodone/acetaminophen 10mg/325mg inventory that was acquired and dispensed by 

Respondent Cal-Mex Pharmacy between May 1, 2012 and January 28,2013. According to 

Respondent PIC Oduyale's audit, Respondent Cal-Mex Pharmacy's total acquisition of 

hydrocodone/acetaminophen 10mg/325mg was 8,040 tablets and it's total disposition of 

hydrocodone/acetaminophen 10mg/325mg was 8,073 tablets, (an overage of 33 tablets). 

However, the Board inspector's audit of the inventory and records showed Respondent Cal-Mex 

Pharmacy's total acquisition ofhydrocodone/acetaminophen l0mg/325mg was 8,040 tablets and 

it's total disposition ofhydrocodone/acetaminophen 10mg/325mg was 8,663 tablets of 

hydrocodone/acetaminophen 10mg/325mg during that time period, (an overage of623 tablets) as 

follows: 
Audit Performed By: Total Acquisition Total Disposition Variance Overage 
PIC Oduyale 8,040 tablets 8,073 tablets 33 33 tablets 
Board Inspector 8,040 tablets 8,663 tablets 623 623 tablets 

Thus, the Board inspector discovered that Respondents dispensed 590 more tablets of 

hydrocodone/acetaminophen 10 mg/325mg than accounted for on Respondent PIC Oduyale's 

audit. Additionally, Respondent PIC Oduyale removed from the pharmacy's inventory 630 

tablets on August 27, 2012 but was unable to provide an explanation for these removals to the 

Board inspector. 
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I 32. The Board inspector also discovered that Respondent Cal-Mex Pharmacy was 

purchasing drugs from River City Pharma located in Cincinnati, Ohio. River City Pharma did not 

hold an Out-of-State Wholesaler's license with the Board of Pharmacy between November 2012 

and January 2013. Respondent Cal-Mex Pharmacy purchased the following drugs from River 

City Pharma during that time period: 

Date Invoice Number Dangerous Drug Amount 

11/13/2012 1055611-IN Nystatin topical 2 

11/13/2012 1055611-IN Valacyclovir HCL 500mg tabs I 

11114/2012 1056190-IN Ciprofloxacin HCI 500mg tabs 2 

11/14/2012 1056190-IN Nystatin topical powder 6 

1/8/2013 1078725-IN Nystatin topical powder 6 

1/21/2013 1084697-IN Novo lin 70/30 I OOU inj. 4 

1/21/2013 1084697-IN Novolin R UlOO 4 

1/21/2013 1084697-IN Nystatin topical powder 5 

1/21/2013 1084697-IN Celebrex 200mg Caps 3 

1121/2013 1084697-lN Fluticasone 50mcg spray 6 

1/21/2013 1084697-IN Gabapentin 600mg tabs 2 

1/21/2013 1084697-IN Gabapentin 800mg tabs I 

33. Board inspectors also discovered that Respondent Cal-Mex Pharmacy (who received 

its DEA registration on August 19, 2011) did not report to the Department of Justice any of its 

controlled substance dispensing from August 19,2011 to April19, 2012 and did not report 

weekly from April19, 2012 to April23, 2013. 

34. After completing a review ofprescriptions dispensed by Respondents, Board 

inspectors discovered that Respondent Cal-Mex Pharmacy did not dispense the correct quantity 

when substituting oxycodone 15mg number 200 for a prescription written for oxycodone 30mg 

number 120. The original prescription (RX No. 20013 written on August 8, 2012) provided 
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patient AS with 3,600 mg (a 30 day supply), however, it was dispensed for 3,000 mg (a 25 day 

supply) without notification or consent of the prescriber. 

35. Additionally, Board inspectors discovered that Respondents deviated from 

requirements in filling four prescriptions without documentation of prior consent of the prescriber 

as follows: 
RX# Date 

Written 
Date 
Filled 

Patient Drug Written For Amount Original/Rewrite 
Signature 

Filled For 

20013 8/8/12 8/9/12 AS Oxycodone 3 0 mg 120 Oxycodone 30 mg 
number 120 (1 tab 
four times a day) 

Oxycodone 15 mg 
number 200 (take 
2 tabs four times a 
day) 

40269 12/17112 10/17112 MF Lorazepam 0.5mg 75 Every 8-12 hours Every 8-12 hours 
as needed for 
pain 

40270 10/17/12 10/17/12 EL Hydrocodone/ AP AP 
10/325mg 

90 Rewrite: every 8 
hours as needed 

Every 8 hours 

40416 12/5/12 12/5/12 EH Ambien 5mg 50 Every night at bed 
for 7 weeks 

Every night at bed 
as needed for 
sleep 

36. Respondent Cal-Mex Pharmacy also dispensed twenty-four prescriptions for 

controlled substances not written on controlled substance forms. Respondent PTC Oduyale 

informed the Board inspector that prescriptions were brought in by patients on an 8.5xll" white 

paper, not a controlled substance form, which was preprinted multiple check-off prescription 

blanks. Respondent PIC Oduyale told the Board inspector that all prescriptions were verified; 

however, he did not provide the required hard copy forms. From September 10,2012 to 

November 16, 2012, Respondents dispensed the following prescriptions using original 

prescriptions provided by the patients, which were not written on controlled substance forms: 

RX# Date Written Date Filled Patient Drug Written For Amount 
I. 40202 9/7/12 9/10/12 GN Zolpidem I 0 mg 60 
2. 40203 9/7/12 9/10/12 RA 1-lydrocodone/APAP 10/325 60 
3. 40204 9/7/12 9/10/12 MM Hydrocodone/APAP 10/325 60 
4. 40205 Unknown 9/11/12 EC 1-lydrocodone/APAP 10/325 60 
5. 40207 9/7/12 9/1 J/12 AC Zo1pidem I 0 mg 60 
6. 40209 9/7/12 9/11112 BR Zo1pidem I 0 mg 60 
7. 40210 9/7/12 9/11112 SB Zo1pidem I 0 mg 60 
8. 40211 9/7/12 9/11112 MM 1-lydrocodone/ APAP I 0/325 60 
9. 40212 9/7/12 9/11/12 JR 1-lydrocodone/APAP 10/325 60 
10. 40214 9/7/12 9/11/12 EL Hydrocodone/APAP 10/325 60 
II. 40215 9/7/12 9/11/12 EF Hydrocodone/APAP 10/325 60 
12. 40216 9/7/12 9/11112 EF Zo1pidem 10 mg 60 
13. 40324 11/16/12 11/16/12 RG Hydrocodone/APAP 7.5/750 60 
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14. 40331 11116112 11/16/12 NM Zolpidem 10 mg 60 
15. 40356 11116/12 11/16/12 AC Hydrocodone/APAP 10/325 60 
16. 40357 11/16/12 11/16/12 MM Hydrocodone/ APAP I 0/325 60 
17. 40358 11116/12 11/16/12 MR Hydrocodone/ APAP I 0/325 60 
18. 40359 11116/12 11/16/12 MR Zolpidem I 0 mg 60 
19. 40364 11/16/12 11/16/12 JF Hydrocodone/APAP 10/325 60 
20. 40366 11/16/12 11/16/12 SB Zolpidem I 0 mg 60 
21. 40367 11/16/12 11/16/12 EF Hydrocodone/APAP 10/325 60 
22. 40368 11/16/12 11/16/12 RN Hydrocodone/APAP 10/325 60 
23. 40369 11/16/12 11/16/12 MN Hydrocodone/APAP 10/325 60 
24. 40370 11/16/12 11/16/12 EC Hydrocodone/APAP 10/325 60 

37. A review of prescriptions also revealed to Board inspectors that two prescriptions 

were filled by Respondent Cal-Mex Pharmacy before the prescriber even wrote the prescription. 

Specifically, RX Number 40393 was filled by Respondent Cal-Mex Pharmacy on November 28, 

2012 for patient DF for 1 box ofTestim Gel!%; however, the prescriber wrote the prescription 

on December 5, 2012 (7 days after it was filled.) In addition, RX Number 40233 was filled by 

Respondent Cal-Mex Pharmacy on September 21, 2012 for patient ES for 60 tablets of Tylenol 

#3; however, the prescriber wrote the prescription on October 3, 2012 (11 days after it was filled.) 

When Board inspectors asked Respondent PIC Oduyale for an explanation about the 

discrepancies in the dates, Respondent PIC Oduyale was unable to provide an explanation or any 

documentation supporting the discrepancies in dates. Therefore, Board inspectors determined 

that Respondent Cal-Mex Pharmacy filled postdated prescriptions without consulting the 

prescriber for clarification. 

38. Board inspectors also discovered that Respondent Cal-Mex Pharmacy filled thirty-

nine prescriptions from oral transmission but failed to obtain the name of the agent of the 

prescriber transmitting or "calling in" the prescription as follows: 
RXNumber Date 

Written 
Date Filled Patient Drug Amount 

I 40321 11/16/12 11/16/12 AR Hydrocodone/APAP 10/325 60 
2 40322 11/16/12 11/16/12 MH Hydrocodone/APAP 10/325 60 
3 40323 11/16112 11/16/12 MH Zolpidem 10 mg 60 
4 40326 11/16/12 11/16/12 ML Hydrocodone/APAP 10/325 60 
5 40329 11/16/12 11/16/12 RC Hydrocodone/APAP 10/325 60 
6 40332 11/16112 11/16/12 NM Hydrocodone/APAP 7.5/750 60 
7 40333 11/16112 11/16/12 BR Hydrocodonel APAP I 0/325 60 
8 40334 11/16/12 11/16/12 BR Zolpidem I 0 mg 60 
9 40335 11/16/12 11/16/12 BM Hydrocodonel APAP I 0/325 60 
10 40336 11/16/12 11/16/12 TG Hydrocodone/APAP 10/325 60 
11 40337 11/16/12 I 1/16/12 TG Zolpidem I 0 mg 60 
12 40338 11/16/12 11116112 GN Hydrocodone/APAP 7.5/750 60 
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13 40339 11116/12 11/19/12 DL Hydrocodone/APAP 10/325 60 
14 40341 11/16/12 11116112 ED Hydrocodone/APAP 10/325 60 
15 40342 11116/12 11116/12 JP Hydrocodone/APAP 10/325 60 
16 40344 11/16112 11/16/12 FF Hydrocodone/APAP 10/325 60 
17 40345 11116/12 11116/12 GJ Hydrocodone/APAP 10/325 60 
18 40347 11/16/12 11116/12 MB Hydrocodone/APAP 5/500 60 
19 40348 11/16/12 11116/12 ML Hydrocodone/APAP 10/325 60 
20 40349 11/16/12 11/16/12 FA Hydrocodone/APAP 10/325 60 
21 40351 11116/12 11/16/12 AL Hydrocodone/APAP 10/325 60 
22 40353 11116112 11/16112 MR Hydrocodone/APAP 10/325 60 
23 40354 11116/12 11116112 MR Zolpidern 10 rng 60 
24 40355 11/16112 11116/12 01' Hydrocodone/APAP 5/500 60 
25 40360 11/16/12 11/16/12 RC Hvdrocodone/APAP 10/325 60 
26 40361 11/16/12 11116/12 JC Hvdrocodone/APAP 7.5/750 60 
27 10362 11/16/12 11/16/12 - JT Hvdrocodone/ APAP I 0/325 60 
28 40363 11116/12 11/16/12 EC Hvdrocodone/ APAP I 0/325 60 
29 40365 11/16/12 11/16/12 SB Hvdrocodone/ APAP I 0/325 60 
30 40371 11116/12 11/16/12 CQ Hvdrocodone/ APAP I 0/325 60 
31 40372 11/16/12 11/16/12 EL Hvdrocodone/ APAP I 0/325 60 
32 40374 11/16/12 11/16/12 cs Hvdrocodone/ APAP I 0/325 60 
33 40320 11/16/12 11116/12 JA Hvdrocodone/ APAP 5/500 60 
34 40372 11/16/12 11116112 EL Hvdrocodone/APAP 10/325 60 
35 40374 11116/12 11116/12 cs Hvdrocodone/APAP 10/325 60 
36 40304 11/7/12 11/7/12 EH Ambien5 mg 30 
37 40361 11116/12 11/16/12 JC Hydrocodone/APAP 7.5/750 60 
38 40414 12/15/12 12/15/12 JP Temazeparn 15rng 35 
39 40416 15/5/12 12/5/12 EH Ambien 5 mg 50 

39. Respondent Cal-Mex Pharmacy also refilled prescriptions without obtaining the 

authorization of the prescriber. Specifically, RX number 603306 for patient JP was written on 

November 16,2012 for Motrin 600mg, with no refills authorized on the original prescription. 

Respondents' records show that Respondent Cal-Mex Pharmacy dispensed RX number 603306 to 

patient JP on November 16,2012 and was re-filled on December 12,2012. Board inspectors 

asked Respondent PIC Oduyale about the prescription; however, Respondent PIC Oduyale was 

unable to explain when or who received the authorization for the December 12, 2012 refill. 

40. Respondent Cal-Mex Pharmacy also dispensed approximately a 90 day supply of a 

controlled substance within approximately 30 days to patient BS. Prescription records 

demonstrated that on December 6, 2012, Respondent Cal-Mex Pharmacy dispensed to patient BS 

pursuant to RX number 20049, 150 tablets of oxycodone 30mg with a thirty day estimated 

supply. Fourteen days later on December 20, 2012, Respondent Cal-Mex Pharmacy dispensed to 

patient BS pursuant to RX number 20059, 150 tablets of oxycodone 30mg, which is another thirty 

day estimated supply. Fifteen days later on January 4, 2013, Respondent Cal-Mex Pharmacy 
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again dispensed to patient BS pursuant to RX number 20066, 150 tablets of oxycodone 30mg, 

which is yet another thirty day estimated supply. Board inspectors asked Respondent PIC 

Oduyale about the excessive dispensing of medication to this patient. He admitted that he did not 

contact the physician to approve the dispensing and also did not notice the dates when he was 

dispensing the medication. 

41. Board inspectors also reviewed several original prescriptions that were filled by 

Respondent Cal-Mex Pharmacy. The original prescriptions showed that all of the prescriptions' 

origins were by fax or written prescription. Board inspectors questioned Respondent PIC 

Oduyale about the verifications for these prescriptions. Respondent PIC Oduyale told Board 

inspectors that verifications for these prescriptions were obtained by either calling or walking 

over to the prescriber's office. Although requested, Respondents did not provide the verifications 

for these prescriptions to Board inspectors during the January 28, 2013 inspection. However, on 

February 1, 2013, Respondents provided the requested verifications to Board inspectors with 

edited "backers" (dispensing information on the back of the original prescription). The 

verifications provided by Respondents contained discrepancies when compared to the originals 

obtained by Board inspectors. The verifications showed that the prescriptions were phoned in by 

a person, many of them noted that Dr. Ralfa1 as the verifier (as opposed to fax or written 
 

prescription as reflected on the originals.) Board inspectors noted the following discrepancies 
 

when comparing the originals to the edited backers provided by Respondents: 
 

RX No. Date Date Drug Amount Original Edited Backer 
Written Filled 

~;~26~9~---r+12~/~17~/~12~~1~0~/1~7~/1~2-+~L-o-ra-ze_p_am~0~.5~m-g---r~75~---r-_,F~ro-n~t-sa-y-s~C~a"ll--~-B~a-ck'e-r-sa-y-s-p'ho-n-e~l 
in: Cal-Mex in by: Maria 
-Backer shows 
Origin: fax 
 

40270 10/17/12 10/17/12 Hydrocodone/AP AP 
 -Backer shows -Backer says phone 90 
10/325 mg Origin: fax in by: Maria 
 

40271 10/17/12 10/17/12 Alprazolam .25 mg 
 -Backer shows -Backer says phone 30 
Origin: fax in by: Maria 
 

40303 11/7/12 11/7/12 Hydrocodone/APAP 
 -Backer says -Backer says phone 60 
5/500 mg IIL ______ ___j_________t_______j_==='-------.L...------'-"'0"-'ri,.,geoino_:_:ow_..ri"'tt_,en'----'-'"'in by: Maria 

1 When Dr. Ralfa was questioned by Board inspectors, he stated that he only 
"sporadically" spoke to Cal-Mex and he did not know or recognize Respondent PIC Oduyale's 
name. 
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40304 11/7/12 11/7/12 Ambien 5mg 30 -Backer says 
Origin: written 

-Backer says phone 
in by: Maria 

40393 12/5112 11128/12 Testim Gel!% !box -Backer says 
Origin: written 

-Backer says phone 
in by: Maria 

40416 12/5/12 12/5/12 Ambien 5mg 50 -Backer shows 
Origin: fax 

-Backer says phone 
in by: Maria 

Unknown 12/5112 12/5/12 Hydrocodone/ AP AP 
5/500 mg 

100 -Backer shows 
Origin: fax 

-Backer says phone 
in by: Maria 

40213 9/7/12 9/11/12 Zolpidem I 0 mg 60 -Backer says 
Origin: written 

-Backer says phone 
in by: Maria 

40320 11116/12 11/16/12 Hydrocodone/ APAP 
5/500 mg 

60 -Backer says 
Origin: written 

-Backer says phone 
in by: Maria 

40321 11/16/12 11/16112 Hydrocodone/APAP 
10/325 mg 

60 -Backer says 
Origin: written 

-Backer says phone 
in by: Rafla 

40322 11116/12 11/16/12 Hydrocodone/ AP AP 
10/325 mg 

60 -Backer says 
Origin: written 

-Backer says phone 
in by: Maria 

40325 11116/12 11/16/12 Hydrocodone/APAP 
10/325 mg 

60 -Backer says 
Origin: written 

-Backer says phone 
in by: Maria 

40326 11/16/12 11/16/12 Hydrocodone/ AP AP 
10/325 mg 

60 -Backer says 
Origin: written 

-Backer says phone 
in by: Maria 

40327 11/16/12 11116112 Hydrocodone/ APAP 
10/325 mg 

60 -Backer says 
Origin: written 

-Backer says phone 
in by: Rafla 

40328 11/16/12 11/16/12 Hydrocodone/ APAP 
5/500 mg 

60 -Backer says 
Origin: written 

-Backer says phone 
in by: Rafla 

40329 11/16/12 11/16/12 Hydrocodone/ APAP 
10/325 mg 

60 -Backer says 
Origin: written 

-Backer says phone 
in by: Rafla 

40333 11/16/12 11/16/12 Hydrocodone/APAP 
10/325 mg 

60 -Backer says 
Origin: written 

-Backer says phone 
in by: Rafla 

40334 11/16/12 11/16/12 Zolpidem I 0 mg 60 -Backer says 
Origin: written 

-Backer says phone 
in by: Rafla 

40335 11/16/12 11/16/12 Hydrocodone/APAP 
10/325 mg 

60 -Backer says 
Origin: written 

-Backer says phone 
in by: Rafla 

40336 11/16/12 11/16/12 Hydrocodone/APAP 
10/325 mg 

60 -Backer says 
Origin: written 

-Backer says phone 
in by: Rafla 

40338 11/16/12 11/16/12 Hydrocodone/APAP 
7.5/750 mg 

60 -Backer says 
Origin: written 

-Backer says phone 
in by: Rafla 

40339 11/16/12 11/16/12 Hydrocodone/APAP 
10/325 mg 

60 -Backer says 
Origin: written 

-Backer says phone 
in by: Rafla 

40342 11/16/12 11/16/12 Hydrocodone/APAP 
10/325 mg 

60 -Backer says 
Origin: written 

-Backer says phone 
in by: Rafla 

40343 11/16/12 11/16/12 Hydrocodone/ APAP 
10/325 mg 

60 -Backer says 
Origin: written 

-Backer says phone 
in by: Rafla 

40344 11/16/12 11/16/12 Hydrocodone/ APAP 
10/325 rng 

60 -Backer says 
Origin: written 

-Backer says phone 
in by: Rafla 

40345 11/16/12 11/16/12 I-!ydrocodone/ APAP 
10/325 mg 

60 -Backer says 
Origin: written 

-Backer says phone 
in by: Rafla 

40347 11/16/12 11116/12 I-!ydrocodone/ APAP 
5/500 rng 

60 -Backer says 
Origin: written 

-Backer says phone 
in by: Rafla 

40348 11/16/12 11116/12 Hydrocodone/ AP AP 
10/325 mg 

60 -Backer says 
Origin: written 

-Backer says phone 
in by: Rafla 

40349 11/16/12 11/16/12 Hydrocodone/ APAP 
10/325 mcr 

60 -Backer says 
Origin: written 

-Backer says phone 
in by: Rafla 

40351 11/16/12 11116/12 I-!ydrocodone/ APAP 
10/325 mg 

60 -Backer says 
Origin: written 

-Backer says phone 
in by: Rafla 

40352 11/16/12 11116/12 I-!ydrocodone/ AP AP 
10/325 mg 

60 -Backer says 
Origin: written 

-Backer says phone 
in by: Rafla 
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40353 11116/12 11/16/12 Hydrocodone/APAP 60 -Backer says -Backer says phone 
10/325 mg Origin: written in by: Rafla 

40354 11116/12 11/16/12 Zolpidem 10 mg 60 -Backer says -Backer says phone 
Origin: written in by: Rafla 

40360 11116/12 11/16/12 Hydrocodone/APAP 60 -Backer says -Backer says phone 
10/325 mg Origin: written in by: Rafla 

40362 11116/12 11116/12 Hydrocodone/ APAP 60 -Backer says -Backer says phone 
10/325 mg Origin: written in by: Rafla 

40363 11116/12 11116/12 Hydrocodone/ APAP 60 -Backer says -Backer says phone 
10/325 mg Origin: written in by: Rafla 

40362 11116/12 11116/12 Hydrocodone/ APAP 60 -Backer says -Backer says phone 
10/325 mg Origin: written in by: Rafla 

40371 11116/12 11116/12 Hydrocodone/ AP AP 60 -Backer say,s -Backer says phone 
10/325 mg Origin: written in by: Rafla 

40372 11116/12 11116/12 Hydrocodone/AP AP 60 -Backer says -Backer says phone 
10/325 mg Origin: written in by: Rafla 

40374 11116/12 11116/12 Hydrocodone/AP AP 60 -Backer says -Backer says phone 
10/325 mg Origin: written in by: Rafla 

40320 11116/12 11116/12 Hydrocodone/ APAP 60 -Backer says -Backer says phone 
5/500 mg Origin: written in by: Rafla 

40372 11116/12 11116112 Hydrocodone/ APAP 60 -Backer says -Backer says phone 
10/325 mo Origin: written in by: Rafla 

40374 11116/12 11/16112 Hydrocodone/ APAP 60 -Backer says -Backer says phone 
10/325 mg Origin: written in by: Rafla 

FIRST CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Against Respondent PIC Oduyale & Respondent Cal-Mex Pharmacy: Failure to Maintain 

Adequate Records of Acquisition & Disposition & Failure to Keep Current Inventory) 

42. Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 4301, subdivision (o) for 

violation of section 4081, subdivision (a), and California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 

1718, for failure to maintain records of acquisition and disposition and failure to keep a current 

inventory for hydrocodone/acetaminophen 10 mg/325 mg from May 1, 2012 through January 28, 

2013, as set forth in paragraph 31, which is incorporated herein by reference. 

SECOND CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Against Respondent PIC Oduyale & Respondent Cal-Mex Pharmacy: Purchasing From 

Unlicensed Out-of-State Distributor) 

43. Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 4301, subdivision (o) for 

violation of section 4169, subdivision (a), in that Respondents purchased twelve prescription 

medications on four different days from an unlicensed Out-of-State Wholesaler, River City 
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Pharma, from November 13, 2012 to January 21, 2013, as set forth in paragraph 32, which is 

incorporated herein by reference. 

THIRD CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Against Respondent PIC Oduyale & Respondent Cal-Mex Pharmacy: Failure to Report to 

CURES) 

44. Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 4301, subdivision (o) for 

violation of section Health and Safety Code section 11165, subdivision (d), for failing to report to 

the Department of Justice any of its controlled substance dispensing from August 19, 2011 to 

April19, 2012 and failing to report weekly from April19, 2012 to Apri123, 2013, as set forth in 

paragraph 33, which is incorporated herein by reference. 

FOURTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Against Respondent PIC Oduyale & Respondent Cal-Mex Pharmacy: Inappropriate Substitution) 

45. Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 4301, subdivision (o) for 

violation of section 4073, subdivision (a), in that on August 9, 2012, Respondents failed to 

dispense the correct quantity when substituting oxycodone 15mg number 200 for a prescription 

written for oxycodone 30mg munber 120, as set forth in paragraph 34, which is incorporated 

herein by reference. 

FIFTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Against Respondent PIC Oduyale and Respondent Cal-Mex Pharmacy: Variation From 

Prescription) 

46. Respondents are subject to disciplinary action tmder section 4301, subdivision (o) for 

violation of California Code ofRegulations, title 16, section 1716, in that Respondents deviated 

from the requirements of four prescriptions without documentation ofprior consent of the 

prescriber, as set forth in paragraph 35, which is incorporated herein by reference. 
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SIXTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 
 

(Against Respondent PIC Oduyale and Respondent Cal-Mex Pharmacy: Failure to Dispense From 

a Required Controlled Substance Prescription Form) 

47. Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 4301, subdivision (o) for 

violation of Health and Safety Code section 11164, subdivision (a), in that Respondents dispensed 

twenty-four prescriptions for controlled substances which were not written on a controlled 

substance form as required by law, as set forth in paragraph 36, which is incorporated herein by 

reference. 

SEVENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Against Respondent PIC Oduyale and Respondent Cal-Mex Pharmacy: Dispensing Postdated 

Prescriptions Without Documentation that Prescriber was Contacted) 

48. Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 4301, subdivision (o) for 

violation of Health and Safety Code section 11164, subdivision (a)(l), in that Respondents 

dispensed two prescriptions for controlled substances where the prescriptions were written after 

the medication was dispensed (postdated), which is prohibited under Health and Safety Code 

section 11172, and without documentation that the prescriber was contacted for correction, as set 

forth in paragraph 3 7, which is incorporated herein by reference. 

EIGHTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Against Respondent PIC Oduyale and Respondent Cal-Mex Pharmacy: Failure to Document the 

Name of Agent Transmitting Oral Prescriptions) 

49. Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 4301, subdivision (o) for 

violation of Health and Safety Code section 11164, subdivision (b)(3), in that Respondents failed 

to docmnent or obtain the name of the agent of the prescriber who transmitted oral prescriptions 

for thirty nine prescriptions, as set forth in paragraph 3 8, which is incorporated herein by 

reference. 
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NINTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 
 

(Against Respondent PIC Oduyale and Respondent Cal-Mex Pharmacy: Filing Controlled 

Substances From Preprinted Multiple Check-offPrescription Blanks) 

50. Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 4301, subdivision (o) for 

violation of California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1717.3, subdivision (a), in that 

Respondents dispensed twenty-four prescriptions for controlled substances pursuant to a 

preprinted multiple check-off prescription form, as set forth in paragraph 36, which is 

incorporated herein by reference. 

TENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Against Respondent PIC Oduyale and Respondent Cal-Mex Pharmacy: Dispensing Erroneous or 

Uncertain Prescriptions) 

51. Respondents are subject to disciplinary action tmder section 4301, subdivision (o) for 

violation of California Code of Regulations, title 16, section 1761, subdivision (a), in that 

Respondents dispensed prescriptions containing significant errors, omissions, irregularities, 

uncertainties, ambiguities or alterations as set forth in paragraphs 36-38, which are incorporated 

herein by reference, and as follows: 

a. Respondents dispensed twenty-four prescriptions for controlled substances pursuant 

to a preprinted multiple check-off prescription blank, not controlled substance forms. 

b. Respondents dispensed two prescriptions for controlled medications where the 

prescriptions were written after the medication was dispensed (postdated) without docmnentation 

the prescriber was contacted for verification. 

c. Respondents dispensed thirty-nine oral prescriptions for controlled medications which 

lacked the name of the agent of the prescriber transmitting the prescription. 

ELEVENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Against Respondent PIC Oduyale and Respondent Cal-Mex Pharmacy: Unauthorized Refill) 

52. Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 4301, subdivision (o) for 

violation of Business and Professions Code section 4063 in that Respondents dispensed 
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prescription number 603306 to patient JP on December 12, 2012 without the authorization of the 

prescriber, as set forth in paragraph 39, which is incorporated herein by reference. 

TWELFTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Against Respondent PIC Oduyale and Respondent Cal-Mex Pharmacy: Failure to Implement 

Corresponding Responsibility) 

53. Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 4301, subdivision (o) for 

violation of Health and Safety Code section 11153, subdivision (a), in that Respondents failed to 

implement corresponding responsibility when dispensing within thirty days, an approximately 

ninety days supply of controlled substance medication to patient BS, which lacked a legitimate 

medical purpose, as set forth in paragraph 40, which is incorporated herein by reference. 

THIRTEENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Against Respondent PIC Oduyale and Respondent Cal-Mex Pharmacy: Knowingly Making a 

Document that Falsely Represents the Existence or Nonexistence of Facts) 

54. Respondents are subject to disciplinary action under section 4301, subdivision (g) for 

knowingly making a document that falsely represents the existence or nonexistence of facts, in 

that Respondents provided to the Board altered documents which falsely represented the 

existence of facts, as set forth in paragraph 41, which is incorporated herein by reference. 

FOURTEENTH CAUSE FOR DISCIPLINE 

(Against Respondent PIC Oduyale: Failure to Implement Best Professional Judgment) 

55. Respondent is subject to disciplinary action under section 4301 for unprofessional 

conduct as defined by Business and Professions Code section 4306.5, subdivision (b), for failing 

to exercise or implement his best professional judgment, as set forth in paragraphs 30-41, which 

are incorporated herein by reference, and as follows: 

a. Respondent failed to keep a current inventory for hydrocodone/acetaminophen 

10mg/325mg from May 1, 2012 through January 28, 2013; 

b. Respondent purchased twelve prescription medications on four different days from an 

unlicensed out of state wholesaler, River City Pharma, from November 13, 2012 through January 

21, 2013; 
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c. Respondent failed to report to the Department of Justice Respondent Cal Mex 

Pharmacy's controlled substance dispensing from August 19,2011 to April19, 2012; 

d. Respondent failed to report to the Department of Justice Respondent Cal Mex 

Pharmacy's controlled substance dispensing on a weekly basis from April19, 2012 to April23, 

2013; 

e. Respondent dispensed four prescriptions which deviated from the requirements of the 

prescriber's prescription; 

f. Respondent dispensed prescription number 603306 to patient JP for Motrin 600mg 

on December 12, 2012 without the authorization of the prescriber; 

g. Respondent failed to dispense the correct quantity when substituting oxycodone 15mg 

number 200 for a prescription written for oxycodone 30mg number 120; 

h. Respondent dispensed twenty-four prescriptions from September 10,2012 to 

November 16,2012 pursuant to an improper preprinted multiple check-offprescription blank; 

i. Respondent dispensed twenty-four prescriptions for controlled substances not written 

on a controlled substance form, as required; 

j. Respondent dispensed thirty-nine oral prescriptions for controlled medications which 

lacked the name of the agent of the prescriber transmitting the prescription; 

k. Respondent dispensed two prescriptions for controlled medications where the 

prescriptions were written after the medication was dispensed (postdated) without documentation 

the prescriber was contacted for correction; 

I. Respondent dispensed sixty-five erroneous or uncertain prescriptions; 

m. Respondent failed to implement corresponding responsibility when dispensing within 

thirty days, an approximate ninety day supply of a oxycodone 30mg to patient BS, which lacked a 

legitimate medical purpose. 

n. Respondent knowingly provided the Board with altered documents which falsely 

represented the existence of a state of facts. 
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I JURISDICTION FOR PETITION TO REVOKE PROBATION 

56. This Petition to Revoke Probation is brought against Respondent Cal-Mex Special 

Services, Inc., doing business as Cai-Mex Pharmacy, before the Board of Pharmacy (Board), 

Department of Consumer Affairs under Probation Term and Condition Number II of the 

Decision and Order In the Matter ofthe Statement ofIssues Against Cal-Mex Special Services, 

Inc., dba Cal-Mex Pharmacy, Case No. 4009. That term and condition states: 

If Respondent has not complied with any term or condition ofprobation, the 
board shall have continuing jurisdiction over Respondent's license, and probation 
shall be automatically extended until all terms and conditions have been satisfied 
or the board has taken other action as deemed appropriate to treat the failure to 
comply as a violation ofprobation, to terminate probation, and to impose the 
penalty that was stayed. 

If Respondent violates probation in any respect, the board, after giving 
Respondent notice and an opportunity to be heard, may revoke probation and carry 
out the disciplinary order that was stayed. Notice and opportunity to be heard are 
not required for those provisions stating that a violation thereof may lead to 
automatic termination of the stay and/or revocation of the license. If a petition to 
revoke probation or an accusation is filed against Respondent during probation, the 
Board shall have continuing jurisdiction and the period of probation shall be 
automatically extended until the petition to revoke probation or accusation is heard 
and decided. 

CAUSE TO REVOKE PROBATION 

(Obey All Laws) 

57. At all times after the effective date of Respondent Cal-Mex Pharmacy's probation, 

Condition 1 stated, in pertinent part: 

Obey All Laws 

Respondent and its officers shall obey all state and federal laws and . 
regulations. 

58. Respondent Cal-Mex Pharmacy's probation is subject to revocation because 

Respondent Cal-Mex Pharmacy failed to comply with Probation Condition 1, referenced above, 

in that it violated state laws and regulations as set forth in paragraphs 30-55 above, which are 

incorporated herein by reference. 
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DISCIPLINARY CONSIDERATIONS 

59. To determine the degree of discipline, if any, to be imposed on Respondent PIC 

Oduyale, Complainant alleges On August I, 2006, in a disciplinary action entitled In the Matter 

ofthe Accusation Against Olugbenga Solomon Oduyale, Case No. 2733, the Board of Pharmacy 

issued a Decision and Order effective August 31, 2006, adopting the Proposed Decision of the 

Administrative Law Judge dated May 17, 2006, providing that Respondent PIC Oduyale's 

Pharmacist License was revoked; however, the revocation was stayed and Respondent PIC 

Oduyale was placed on probation for three years. On August 30, 2006, the Board granted a stay 

of the Decision and granted Respondent PIC Oduyale's Petition for Reconsideration based solely 

on the issue of whether the probation condition of "supervision" should be eliminated. On 

November 21, 2006, in its Decision After Reconsideration, the Board adopted the proposed 

decision dated May 17, 2006, with the exception of the "supervision" paragraph, which was 

modified to read, "Respondent shall not supervise any ancillary personnel, including, but not 

limited to, registered pharmacy technicians or exemptees, of any entity licensed by the board." 

All other provisions of the probation conditions were to remain in full force and effect and the 

Decision After Reconsideration became effective on December 21,2006. Respondent PIC 

Oduyale's three year probationary term was completed on December 20, 2009. 

PRAYER 

WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters alleged in this 

Accusation and Petition to Revoke Probation, and that following the hearing, the Board of 

Pharmacy issue a decision: 

1. Revoking the probation that was granted by the Board of Pharmacy in Case No. 4009 

and imposing the disciplinary order that was stayed thereby revoking Pharmacy Permit No. PHY 

50374 issued to Cal-Mex Special Services, Inc., doing business as Cal-Mex; 

2. Revoking or suspending Pharmacy Permit No. PHY 50374, issued to Cal-Mex 

Special Services, Inc., doing business as Cal-Mex Pharmacy; 

3. Revoking or suspending Pharmacist License Number 42719 to Olugbenga Solomon 

Oduyale; 
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4. Ordering Cal-Mex Special Services, Inc., doing business as Cal-Mex to pay the Board 

of Pharmacy the reasonable costs of the investigation and enforcement of this case, pursuant to 

Business and Professions Code section 125.3; 

5. Ordering Olugbenga Solomon Oduyale to pay the Board ofPharmacy the reasonable 

costs of the investigation and enforcement of this case, pursuant to Business and Professions 

Code section 125.3; 

6. Taking such other and further action as deemed necessary and proper. 

DATED: _'T~,I-'6'""4-/~/3~--
Board o macy 
Department of Consumer Affairs 
State of California 
Complainant 

SD2013705458 
70724831.doc 

Executi e Of cer 
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Exhibit A 
Decision and Order 
 

Board of Pharmacy Case No. 4009 
 



BEFORE THE 
 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 
 

DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
 

In the Matter of the Statement of Issues Against: Case No. 4009 

CALMEX SPECIAL SERVICES, INC., dba 
CAL-MEX PHARMACY 
337 Paulin Ave., Ste. 1A 
Calexico, CA 92231 

Pharmacy Permit Applicant 

Respondent. 

DECISION AND ORDER 

The attached Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is hereby adopted by the 

Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer f\_ffairs, as its Decision in this matter. 

This decision shall become effective on August 19, 2011. 
 

It is so ORDERED July 20, 2011. 
 

BOARD OF PHARMACY 
DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

By 
STANLEY C. WEISSER 
Board President 
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i KAMALA D. HARRIS 
Attorney General of California 
LINDA K. 'SCHNEIDER 
Supervising Deputy Attorney General 
KAREN L. GORDON 
Deputy Attorney General 
State BarNo. 137969 

110 West "A 11 Street, Suite 1100 
San Diego, CA 92101 
P.0. Box 85266 
San Diego, CA 92186-5266 
Telephone: (619) 645-2073 
Facsimile: (619)645-2061 

Attorneys for Complainant 

BEFORE THE 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 

DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

In the Matter of the Statement ofls~ues Case No. 4009 
Against: 

STIPULATED SETTLEMENT AND 
CALMEX SPECIAL SERVICES, INC., dba DISCIPLINARY ORDER 
CAL-MEX PHARMACY, 
337 Paulin Ave., Suite lA 
Calexico, CA 92231 

Respondent. 

In the interest of a prompt and speedy settlement ofthi's matter, consistent with the public 

interest and the responsibility of the Board of Pharmacy of the Department of Consumer Affairs, 

the parties hereby agree to the following Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order which will 

be submitted to the Board for approval and adoption as the final disposition ofthe Statement of 

Issues. 

PARTIES 

1. Virginia Herold (Complainant) is the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy. 

She brought tl1is action solely iii her official capa·city and is rep1'esented in this matter by Kamala · 

D. Harris, Attorney General of the State of California, by Karen L. Gordon, Deputy Attorney 

General. 
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2. Calmex Special Services, Inc. dba Cal-Mex Pharmacy (Respondent) is represented in 

2 this proceeding by attorney Ronald S. Marks, whose address is: 21900 Burbank Blvd., Suite 300 

3 Woodland Hills, CA 91367 

4 3. On or about June 25, 201 0, the Board of Pharmacy (Board), received an application 

for a pharmacy permit from Calmex Special Services, Inc., dba Cal-Mex Pharmacy (Respondent). 

6 On orabout June 15, 2010, Olugbenga S. Oduyale, President of Cal-Mex Special Services, Inc. 

7 (Cal-Mex); Am1a Murillo, Secretary of Cal-Mex; and Oluwatoyin Oduyale, Cal-Mex Board 

8 Member; each ce1iified under penalty of perjury to the truthfulness of all statements, answers, and 

9 representations in the application. Olugbenga S. Oduyale indicated on the application that he will 

be the Pharmacist-in-Charge of Cal-Mex Pharmacy. The Board denied the application on 

11 November 22, 2010. 

JURISDICTION 12 

13 4. Statement of Issues No. 4009 was filed before the Board of Pharmacy (Board), and is 

14 currently pending against Respondent. The Statement of Issues and all other statutorily required 

documents were properly served on Respondent on May 13, 2011. A copy of Statement of Issues 

16 No. 4009 is attached as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by reference. 

17 ADVISEMENT AND WAIVERS 

18 5. Respondent has carefully read, fully discussed with counsel, and understands the 

19' charges and allegations in Statement oflssues No. 4009. Respondent has also carefully read, 

fully discussed with counsel, and understands the effects of this Stipulated Settlement and 

21 Disciplinary Order. 

22 6. Respondent is fully aware of its legal rights in this matter, including the right to a 

23 hearing on the charges and allegations in the Statement ofissues; the right to confront and cross­

24 examine the witnesses against it; the right to present evidence and to testify on its own behalf; the 

right to the issuance of subpoenas to compel the attendance of witnesses and the production of 

26 documents; the right to reconsideration and court review of an adverse decision; and all other 

27 rights accorded by the California Administrative Procedure Act and other applicable laws. 

28 
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7. Respondent voluntarily, knowingly, and intelligently waives and gives up each and 

every right set forth above. 

CULPABILITY 

8. Respondent admits that the license ofOlugbenga Solomon Oduyale, RPH 42719, was 

placed on probation for a term of three (3) years effective December 21, 2006 in case number 

2733. 

9. Respondent agrees that its pharmacy permit application is subject to denial and it 

agrees to be bound by the Board's probationary terms as set forth in the Disciplinary Order 

below. 

CONTINGENCY 

10. This stipulation shall b~ subject to approval by the Board of Pharmacy. Respondent 

understands and agrees that counsel for Complainant and the staff of the Bom·d of Pharmacy may 

communicate directly with the Board regarding this stipulation and settlement, without notice to 

or pa1ticipation by Respondent or its counsel. By signing the stipulation, Respondent understands 

and agrees that it may not withdraw its agreement or seek to rescind the stipulation prior to the 

time the Board considers and acts upon it. If the Board fails to adopt this stipulation as its 

Decision .and Order, the Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order shall be of no force or 

effect, except for this paragraph, it shall be inadmissible in any legal action between the pa1ties, 

·and the Board shall not be disqualified from further action by having considered this matter. 

11. The pmties understand and agree that facsimile copies of this Stipulated Settlement 

and Disciplinary Order, ii1cluding facsimile signatures thereto, shall have the same force and 

effect as the originals. 

12. This Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is intended by the parties to be an 

integrated writing representing the complete, final, and exclusive embodiment of their agreement, 

along with the letter dated May 29, 2011 from Karen Gordon to Ron Marks, which indicates the 
. . 

dat.es the decision of the boai·d a11d the permit will be issued. This Stipulated Settlement a11d 

Disciplinary Order supersedes any and all prior or contemporaneous agreements, understandings, 

discussions, negotiations, and commitments (written or oral). This Stipulated Settlement and 

, 
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Disciplinary Order may not be altered, amended, modified, supplemented, or otherwise changed 

except by a writing executed by an authorized representative of each of the parties. 

13. 	 In consideration of the foregoing admissions and stipulations, the pm1ies agree that 

the Board may, \Vithout further notice or· formal proceeding, issue and enter the following 

Disciplinary Order: 

DISCIPLINARY ORDER 

IT IS· HEREBY ORDERED that upon satisfaction of all statutory and regulatory 

requirements for issuance of a license, a license shall be issued to Respondent Calmex Special 
. 	 . 

Services, Inc. dba Cal-Mex Phannacy, and immediately revoked; the order of revocation is stayed 

and Respondent is placed onprobation for thi11y-five (35) months upon the following terms and 

conditions. 

1. 	 0 bey All Laws 

Respondent and its officers shall obey all state and federal laws arid regulations. 

Respondent and its officers shall report any of the following occurrences to the board, in 

writing, within seventy-two (72) hours of such occurrence: 

0 	 an anest or issuance of a criminal complaint for violation of any provision of the 

Pharmacy Law, state and fedeni.l food and drug laws, or state and federal controlled 

substm1ces laws 

0 	 a plea of guilty or nolo contendre in any state or federal criminal proceeding to any 

criminal complaint, information or indictment 

0 a conviction of any crime 

0 discipline, citation, or other administrative action filed by any state or federal agency 

which involves Respondent's pharmacy permit or which is r~lated to the practice of 

pharmacy or the manufacturing, obtaining, handling or distributing, billing; or 

charging for any drug, device or controlled substance. 

Failure to timely report any such occurrence shall be considered a violation of probation. 

I I I 
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2. Report to the Board 

Respondent shall report to the board qumierly, on a schedule as directed by the board or its 

designee. The report shall be made either in person or in writing, as directed. Among other 

requirements, Respondent owner shall state in each report under penalty of pe1jury whether there 

has been compliance with all the terms and conditions of probation. Failure to submit timely 

reports in a form as directed shall be considei·ed a violation of probation. Any period(s) of 

delinquency in submission of reports as directed may be added to the total period of probation. 

Moreovei·, if the final probation repmi is not made as directed, probation shall be automatically 

extended until such time as the final report is made and accepted by the board. 

3. Interview with the Board 

Upon receipt of reasonable prior notice, Respondent's personnel shall appear in person for 

interviews with the board or its designee, at such intervals and locations as are determined by the 

board or its designee. Failure to appear for any scheduled interview without prior notification to 

board staff, or failure to appear for two (2) or more scheduled interviews with the board or its 

designee during the period .of probation, shall be considered a violation of probation. 

4. Cooperate with Board Staff 

Respondent shall cooperate with the board's inspection program and with the board's 

monitoring and irivestigation ofRespondent's compliance with the terms and conditions oftheir 

probation. Failure to cooperate shall be considered a violation of probation. 

5. Probation Monitoring Costs 

Respondent shall pay any costs associated with probation monitoring as determined by the 

board each and every year of probation. Such costs shall be payable to the board on a schedule as 

directed by the bomd or its designee. Failure to pay such costs by the deadline(s) as directed shall 

be considered a violation of probation. 

6. Status of License 

Respondent shall, at all times while on probation, maintain current licensure with the board. 

If Respondent submits an application to the board, and the application is approved, for a change 

of location, change of perm_it or change of ownership, the board shall retain continuing 
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.. j1:1.risdiction over the license, and the Respondent shall remain on probation as determined by the 

board. Failure to maintain cmrent licensure shall be considered a violation of probation. 

If Respondent's license expires or is cancelled by operation oflaw or otherwise at any time 

during the period of probation, including any extensions thereof or otherwise, upon renewal or 

reapplication Respondent's license shall be subject to all terms and conditions of this probation· 

not previously satisfied. 

7. License Surrender While on Probation/Suspension 

Following the effective date of this decision, should Re.spondent discontinue business, 

Respondent may tender the premises license to the board for surrender. The board or its designee 

shall have the discretion whether to grant the request for surrender or take any other action it 

deems appropriate and reasonable. Upon formal acceptance of the surrender of the license, 

Respondent will no longer be subject to the terms and conditions of probation. 

Upon acceptance of the surrender, Respondent shall relinquish the premises wall and 

renewal license to the board within ten (1 0) days of notif!.cation by the board that the surrender is 

accepted. Respondent shall fmiher submit a completed Discontinuance of Business form 

according to board guidelines and shall notify the boru·d of the records inventory transfer. 

Respondent shall also, by the effective date of this decision, arrange for the continuation of 

care for ongoing patie1;tts of the phmmacy by, at minimum, providing a written notice to ongoing 

patients that specifies the anticipated closing date of the pharmacy and that identifies one or more 

area pharmacies capable of taking up the patients' care, and by cooperating as may be necessary 

in the transfer of records or prescriptions for ongoing patients. Within five days of its provision 

to the pharmacy's ongoing patients, Respondent shall provide a copy of the written notice to the 

board. For the purposes of this provision, "ongoing patients" means those patients for whom the 

pharmacy has on file a prescription with one or more refills outstanding, or for whom the 

pharmacy has filled a prescription within the preceding sixty (60) days. 

Responderit may not apply for any new licensme from the board for three (3) years from the· 

effective date of the sunender. Respondent shall meet all requirements applicable to the license 

sought as of the date the application for that license is submitted to the boru·d. 
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Respondent shall reimburse the board for its costs. of investigation and prosecution prior to 

the acceptance ofthe surrender. 

8. Notice to Employees 

Respondent shall, upon or before the effective date of this decision, ensure that all 

einployees involved in permit operations are made aware of all the terms and conditions of 

probation, either by posting a notice of the terms and conditions, circulating such notice, or both. 

If the notice required by this provision is posted, it shall be posted in a prominent place and shall 

remain posted throughout the probation period. Respondent shall ensure that any employees 

hired mused after the effective date of this decision are made aware of the terms and conditions 

of probation by posting a notice, circulating a notice, or both. Additionally, Respondent shall 

submit written notification to the board, within fifteen (15) days of the effective date of this 

decision, that this term has been satisfied. Failme to submit such notification to the board shall be 

considered a violation of probation. 

11 Employees 11 as used in this provision includes all full-time, part-ti~e, 

volunteer, temporary and relief employees and independent contractors employed or 

hired at any time during probation. 

9. Owners and Officers: Knowledge of the Law 
( 

Respondent shall provide, within thi1iy (3 0) days after the effective date of this decision, 

signed and dated statements from its owners, including any owner or holder of ten percent (1 0%) 

or more of the interest in Respondent or Respondent's stock, and any officer, stating under 

penalty ofpe1jury that said individuals have read and are familiar with state and federal laws and 

regulations governing the practice of pharmacy. The failure to timely provid~ said statements 

under penalty of pe1jury shall be considered a violation of probation. 

10. Posted Notice of Probation 

Respondent shall prominently post a probation notice provided by the board in a place 

conspicuous and readable to the public. The probation notice shall remain posted during the 

entire period of probation. 

II I 
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Respondent shall not, directly or indirectly, engage in any conduct or make any statement 

which is intended to mislead or is likely to have the effect of misleading any patient, customer, 
 

member of the public, or other person(s) as to the nature of and reason for the probation of the 
 

licensed entity. 
 

Failure to post such notice shall be considered a violation of prob~tion. 

11. · Violation of Probation 

If Respondent has not complied with any term or condition of probation, the board shall 

have continuing jurisdiction over Respondent's license, and probation shall be automatically 

extended until all terms and conditions have been satisfied or the board has taken other action as 

deemed appropriate to treat the failure to comply as a violation of probation, to terminate 

probation, and to impose the penalty that was stayed. 

If Respondent violates probation in any respect, the board, after giving Respondent notice 

and an oppotiunity to be heard, may revoke probation _and carry out the disciplinary order that 

was stayed. Notice and opportunity to be heard are not required for those provisions stating that a 

violation thereof may lead to automatic termination ofthe stay and/or revocation ofthe license. If 

a petition: to revoke probation or an accusation is filed against Ryspondent during probation, the 

board shall have continuing jurisdiction and the period of probation shall be automatically 

extended until the petition to revoke probation or accusation is heard and decided. 

12. Completion of Probation 

Upon written notice by the board or its designee indicating successful completion of 

probation, Respondent's license will be fully restored. 

13. Separate File of Records 

Respondent shall maintain and make available for inspection a separate file of all records 

petiaining to the acquisition or disposition of all controlled substances. Failure to maintain such 

file or make it available for inspection shall be considered a violation ·of probation. 

14. Pharmacist-in-Charge 

· Respondent will be acceptable to the Board as Pharmacist-in-Charge of Cal-Mex Pharmacy. 

I I I 
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ENDORSEMENT 

The foregoing Stipulated Settlement and Disciplinary Order is hereby respectfully 

submitted for consideration by the Board of Pharmacy of the Department of Consumer Affairs. 

Dated: May 31, 2011 Respectfully submitted, 

KAMALA D. HARRIS 
Attorney General of California 
LINDA K. SCHNEIDER 
Supervising Deputy Attorney General 

tcat&A_ ~J.~ 
KAREN L. GORDON 
Deputy Attorney General 
Attorneys for Complainant 

SD2011800135 
80502612.doc 
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KAMALA D. HARRIS 
 
Attorney General of California 
 
LINDA K. SCHNEIDER 
 
Supervising Deputy Attorney General 
 
KAREN L. GORDON 
 
Deputy Attorney General 
 
StateBarNo. 137969 
 

110 West "A" Street, Suite 1100 
 
San Diego, CA 92101 
 
P.O. Box 85266 
 
San Diego, CA 92186-5266 
 
Telephone: (619) 645-2073 
 
Facsimile: (619) 645-2061 
 

Attorneysjor Complainant 

BEFORE THE 
 
BOARD OF PHARMACY 
 

DEPARTMENT OF CONSUMER AFFAIRS 
 
STATE OF CALIFORNIA 
 

In the Matter ofthe Statement·ofissues Against: Case No. 4009 
 

CALMEX SPECIAL SERVICES, INC., dba 
 
CAL-MEX PHARMACY, 
 
337 Paulin Ave., Suite lA 
 STATEMENT OF ISSUES 
 
Calexico, CA 92231 
 

Respondent 

Complainant alleges: 

PARTIES 

1. Virginia Herold (Complainant) brings this Statement of Issues solely in her official 

capacity as the Executive Officer of the Board of Pharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs.· 

2. On or about June 25,2010, the Board ofPharmacy, Department of Consumer Affairs 

received an application for a pharmacy permit f1~om Calmex Special Services, Inc., dba Cal-Mex 

Pharmacy (Respondent). On or about June 15,2010, Olugbenga S. Oduyale, President ofCal-

Mex Special Services, Inc. (Cal-Mex); Anna Murillo, Secretary of Cal-Mex; and Oluwatoyin 

Oduyale, Cal-Mex Board Member; each certified under penalty ofpe1jury to the truthfulness of 

all statements, answers, and representations in the application. Olugbenga S. Oduyale indicated 

on the application that he will be the Pharmacist-in-Charge of Cal-Mex Pharmacy. The Board 

denied the application on November 22, 2010. 
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JURISDICTION 1 

3. This Statement oflssues is brought before the Board of Pharmacy (Board), 2 

3 Department of Consumer Affairs, under the authority of the following laws. All section 

4 references are to the Business and Professions Code unless otherwise indicated. 

4. Section 4011 of the Code provides that the Board shall administer and enforce both 5 

6 the Phannacy Law [Bus. & Prof. Code, section 4000 et seq.] and the Uniform Controlled 

7 Substances Act [Health & Safety Code, section 11000 et seq.]. 

5. Section 4300 of the Code states, in pertinent part: 8 

9 

1 0 (c) The board may refuse a license to any applicant guilty of 
unprofessional conduct. The board may, in its sole discretion, issue a probationary 

11 license to any applicant for a license who is guilty of unprofessional conduct and who 
has met all other requirements for licensure. The board may issue the license subject 

12 to any terms or conditions not contrary to public policy, including, but not l:irnited to, 
the following: 

13 
(1) Medical or psychiatric evaluation. 

14 
(2) Continuing medical or psychiatric treatment. 

15 
(3) Restriction of type or circumstances ofpractice. 

16 
(4) .Continuing participation in a board-approved rehabilitation program. 
 

17 
 
(5) Abstention from the use of alcohol or drugs. 
 

18 
 
(6) Random fluid testing for alcohol or drugs. 
 

19 
 
(7) Compliance with laws and regulations governing the practice of 
 

20 pharmacy. 
 

21 STATUTORY PROVISIONS 

22 6. Section 475 of the Code states, in pertinent part: 

23 · (a) Notwithstanding any other provisions of this code, the provisions of 
 
this division shall govern the denial of licenses on the grounds of: 
 

24 
 
(1) Knowingly making a false statement of material fact, or knowingly 
 

25 omitting to state a material fact, in an application for a license. 
 

26 (2) Conviction of a crime. 

27 (3) Commission of any act involving dishonesty, fraud or deceit with the 
 
intent to substantially benefit himself or another, or substantially injure another. 
 

28 
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(4) Commission of any act which, if done by a licentiate ofthe business 
or profession in question, would be grounds for suspension or revocation of license. 

7. Section 480 of the Code states, in pertinent part: 

(a) A board may deny a license regulated by this code on the grounds 
that the applicant has one of the following: 

(3)(A) Done any act that if done by a licentiate of the business or 
profession in question, would be grounds for suspension or revocation of license. 

8. Section 4022 states: 

Dangerous drug" or "dangerous device" means any drug or device unsafe 
.for selfuse in humans or animals, and includes the following: 

(a) Any drug that bears the legend: "Caution: federal law prohibits 
 
dispensing without prescription," "R.x only," or words of similar import. 
 

(b) Any device that bears the statement: "Caution: federal law restricts 
 
this device to sale by or on the order of a ," "Rx only," or words of 
 
similar import, the blank to be filled in with the designation of the practitioner 
 
licensed to use or order use of the device. 
 

(c) Any other drug or device that by federal or state law can be lawfully 
 
dispensed only on prescription or furnished pursuant to Section 4006. 
 

9. Section 4059.5 states, in pertinent part: 

(a) Except as otherwise provided in this chapter, dangerous drugs or 
 
dangerous devices may only be ordered by an entity licensed by the board and shall 
 
be delivered to the licensed premises and signed for and received by a pharmacist. 
 
Where a licensee is permitted to operate through a designated representative, the 
 
designated representative shall sign for and receive the delivery. 
 

10. Section 407 6 states, in pertinent part: 

. (a) A pharmacist shall not dispense any prescription except in a 
 
container that meets the requirements of state and federal law and is correctly labeled 
 
with all ofthe following: · 
 

(1) Except where the prescriber or the certified nurse-midwife who 
 
functions pursuant to a standardized procedure or protocol described in Section 
 
2746.51, the nurse practitioner who functions pursuant to a standardized procedure 
 
described in Section 2836.1 or protocol, the physician assistant who functions 
 
pursuant to Section 3502.1, the naturopathic doctor who functions pursuant to a 
 
standardized procedure or protocol described in Section 3640.5, or the pharmacist 
 
who functions pursuant to a policy, procedure, or protocol pursuant to either Section 
 
4052.1 or 4052.2 orders otherwise, either the manufacturer's trade name ofthe drug 
 
or the generic name and the name of the manufacturer. Commonly used abbreviations 
 
may be used. Preparations containing two or more active ingredients may be 
 
identified by the manufacturer's trade name or the commonly used name or the 
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principal active ingredients. 

(2) The directions for the use of the drug. 

(3) The name of the patient or patients. 

(4) The name of the prescriber or, if applicable, the name of the 
 
certified nurse-midwife who functions pursuant to a standardized procedure or 
 
protocol described in Section 2746.51, the nurse practitioner who functions pursuant 
 
to a standardized procedure described in Section 2836.1 or protocol, the physician 
 
assistant who functions pursuant to Section 3502.1, the naturopathic doctor who 
 
functions pursuant to a standardized procedure or protocol described in Section 
 
3640.5, or the pharmacist who functions pursuant to a policy, procedure, or protocol 
 
pursuant to either Section 4052.1 or 4052.2. 
 

(5) The date of issue. 

(6) The name and address of the pharmacy, and prescription number or 
other means of identifying the prescription. 

(7) The strength of the drug or drugs dispensed. 

(8) The quantity ofthe drug or drugs dispensed. 

(9) The expiration date of the effectiveness of the drug dispensed. 

(10) The condition or purpose for which the drug was prescribed ifthe 
condition or purpose is indicated on the prescription. 

(11) (A) Commencing January 1, 2006, the physical description ofthe 
dispensed medication, including its color, shape, and any identification code that 
appears on the tablets or capsules, except as follows: 

(i) Prescriptions dispensed by a veterinarian. 

" (ii) An exemption from the requirements of this paragraph shall be 
granted to a new drug for the frrst 120 days that the drug is on the market and for the 
90 days during which the national reference file has no description on file. 

(iii) Dispensed medications for which no physical description exists in 
any commercially available database. 

(B) This paragraph applies to outpatient pharmacies only. 

(C) The information required by this paragraph may be printed on an 
auxiliary label that is affixed to the prescription container. 

(D) This paragraph shall not become operative if the board, prior to 
January 1, 2006, adopts regulations that mandate the same labeling requirements set 
forth in this paragraph. 

Ill 

Ill 
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11. Section 4081 states, in pertinent part: 

(a) All records of manufacture and of sale, acquisition, or disposition of 
dangerous drugs or dangerous devices shall be at all times during business hours open 
to inspection by authorized officers of the law, and shall be preserved for at least 
three years from the date of making. A current inventory shall be kept by every 
manufacturer, wholesaler, pharmacy, veterinary food animal drug retailer, physician, 
dentist, podiatrist, veterinarian, laboratory, clinic, hospital, institution, or 
establishment holding a currently valid and umevoked certificate, license, permit, 
registration, or exemption under Division2 (commencing with Section 1200) ofthe 
Health and Safety Code or under Part 4 (commencing with Section 16000) of 
Division 9 ofthe Welfare and Institutions Code who maintains a stock of dangerous 
drugs or dangerous devices. 

(b) The owner, officer, and partner of any pharmacy, wholesaler, or 
veterinary food animal drug retailer shall be jointly responsible, with the pharmacist 
in charge or representative-in-charge, for maintaining the records and inventory 
described in this section. . . . 

12. Section 4125 states: 

(a) Every pharmacy shall es~ablish a quality assurance program that shall, 
at a minimum, document medication errors attributable, in whole or in part, to the 
pharmacy or its personnel. The purpose of the quality assurance program shall be to 
assess errors that occur in the pharmacy in dispensing or furnishing prescription 
medications so that the pharmacy may take appropriate action to prevent a recurrence. 

(b) Records generated for and maintained as a component of a 
 
pharmacy's ongoing quality assurance program shall be considered peer review 
 
documents and not subject to discovery in any arbitration, civil, or other proceeding, 
 
except as provided hereafter. That privilege shall not prevent review of a pharmacy's 
 
quality assurance program and records maintained as part of that system by the board 
 
as necessary to protect the public health and safety or if fraud is alleged by a 
 
government agency with jurisdiction over the pharmacy. Nothing in this section shall 
 
be construed to prohibit a patient from accessing his or her own prescription records. 
 
Nothing in this section shall affect the discoverability of any records not solely 
 
generated for and maintained as a component of a pharmE~.cy's O!J.going quality 
 
assurance program. 
 

(c) This section shall become operative on January 1, 2002. 

13. Section 4169 provides in pertinent part: 

(a) A person or entity may not do any of the following: 

(1) Purchase, trade, sell, or transfer dangerous drugs or dangerous 
 
devices at wholesale with a P.erson or entity that is not licensed with the board as a 
 
wholesaler or pharmacy. 
 

(3) Purchase, trade, sell, or transfer dangerous drugs that the person 
 
knew or reasonably should have known were misbranded, as defined in Section 
 
111335 ofthe Health and Safety Code. 
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(5) Fail to maintain records of the acquisition or disposition of 
 
dangerous drugs or dangerous devices for at least three years. 
 

14. Section 4301 of the Code states, in pertinent part: 

The board shall take action against any holder of a license who is guilty 
ofunprofessional conduct or whose license has been procured by fraud or 
misrepresentation or issued by mistake. Unprofessional conduct shall include, but ·is 
not limited to, any ofthe following: 

(o) Violating or attempting to violate, directly or indirectly, or assisting 
in or abetting the violation of or conspiring to violate any provision or term of this 
chapter or of the applicable federal and state laws and regulations governing 
pharmacy, including regulations established by the board or by any other state or 
federal regulatory agency. 

. 
15. Section 4332 ofthe Code states: 

Any person who fails, neglects, or refuses to maintain the records 
required by Section 4081 or who, when called upon by an authorized officer or a 
member ofthe board, fails, neglects, or refuses to produce or provide the records 
within a reasonable time, or who willfully produces or furnishes records that are false, 
is guilty of a misdemeanor. 

REGULATIONS 

16. Section 1711 ofthe California Code ofRegulations, Title 16, (CCR) states, in 

pertinent part: 

(a) Each pharmacy shall establish or participate in an established quality 
assurance program which documents and assesses medication errors to determine 
cause and an appropriate response as part of a mission to improve the quality of 
pharmacy service and prevent errors. 

17. Section 1718 ofthe California Code ofRegulations, Title 16, (CCR) states: 

The controlled substances inventories required by Title 21, CFR, Section 
1304 shall be available for inspection upon request for at least 3 years after the date of 
the inventory. 

18. Section 1769 ofthe California Code of Regulations, Title 16, (CCR) states, in 

pertinent part: 

(a) When considering the denial of a facility or personal license under 
Section 480 of the Business and Professions Code, the board, in evaluating the 
rehabilitation of the applicant and his present eligibility for licensing or registration, 
will consider the following criteria: 
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(1) The nature and severity of the act(s) or offense(s) under consideration 
 
1 
 as grounds for denial. 

2 (2) Evidence of any act(s) committed subsequent to the act(s) or crime(s) 
under consideration as grounds for denial under Section 480 of the Business and 
 

3 
 Professions Code. 

4 (3) The time that has elapsed since commission of the act(s) or crime(s) 
referred to in subdivision (1) or (2). 
 

5 
 
(4) Whether the applicant has complied with any terms of parole, 
 

6 
 probation, restitution or any other sanctions lawfully imposed against the applicant. 

7 (5) Evidence, if any, of rehabilitation submitted by the applicant. 

8 19. Section 1304.04 ofthe Code ofFederal Regulations, Title 21, (CFR) sets forth the 

9 · DEA requirements for the maintenance and inventories of controlled substances and states, in 

10 pertinent part: 

11 (a) Except as provided in paragraphs (a)(l) and (a)(2) of this section, 
every inventory and other records required to be kept under this part must be kept by 

12 the registrant and be available, for at least 2 years from the date of such inventory or 
records, for inspection and copying by authorized employees of the Administration. 

13 
20. Section 1304.11 of the Code ofFederal Regulations, Title 21, (CFR) sets forth the 

14 
DBA inventory requirements for controlled substances and states, in pertinent part: 

15 
(a) General requirements. Each inventory shall contain a complete and 

16 accurate record of all controlled substances on hand on the date the inventory is 
taken, and shall be maintained in written, typewritten, or printed form at the 

17 registered location. An inventory taken by use of an oral recording device must be 
 
promptly transcribed. Controlled substances shall be deemed to be "on hanc1'' ifthey 
 

18 ' are in the possession of or under the control of the registrant, including substances 
 
returned by a customer, ordered by a customer but not yet invoiced, stored in a 
 

19 
 warehouse on behalf of the registrant, and substances in the possession of employees 
of the registrant and intended for distribution as complimentary samples. A separate 

20 inventory shall be made for each registered location and each independent activity 
 
registered, except as provided in paragraph (e)(4) of this section. In the event 
 

21 
 controlled substances in the possession or under the control of the registrant are 
 
stored at a location for which he/she is not registered, the substances shall be included 
 

22 
 in the inventory of the registered location to which they are subject to control or to 
 
which the person possessing the substance is responsible. The inventory may be taken 
 

23 
 either as of opening ofbusiness or as of the close ofb_usiness on the inventory date 
 
and it shall be :indicated on the inventory. 
 

24 
 

Ill 25 

Ill 26 

Ill 27 

Ill 28 
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COST RECOVERY 1 
 

2 
 21. Section 125.3 of the Code states, in pertinent part, that the Board may request the 

3 administrative law judge to direct a licentiate found to have committed a violation or violations of 

4 the licensing act to pay a sum not to exceed the reasonable costs of the investigation and 

enforcement ofthe case. 

6 DRUGS 

22. 

23. 

4022. 9 

24. Naproxen is adangerous drug pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 
 

11 4022. 
 

· 12 25. Viagra is a dangerous drug pursuant to Business and Professions Code section 4022. 

13 26. Vicodin, a brand name for hydrocodone, is a Schedule III controlled substance as 

14 designated by Health and Safety Code section 11056(e)(4), and is a dangerous drug pursuant to 

Business and Professions Code section 4022. 

16 27. Xanax, a brand name for alprazolam, is a Schedule IV controlled substance as 

17 designated by Health and Safety Code section 11057(d)(l), and is a dangerous drug pursuant to 

18 Business and Professions Code section 4022. 

19 FACTS 

28. The President ofRespondent Cal-Mex, Olugbenga Solomon Oduyale, is a licensed 

21 pharmacist. On or about August 8, 1989, the Board ofPharmacy issued original pharmacist 

22 license number RPH 42719 to Olugbenga Solomon Oduyale. The license will expire on October 

23 31, 2012, unless renewed. 

24 29. From approximately March of 1997 until approximately January of 2003, Olugbenga 

Solomon Oduyale worked as the Pharmacist-in-Charge at Rite-Aid Pharmacy in Calexico, 

26 California (Calexico Rite-Aid.) · 

27 30. On or about December 31, 2002, just after midnight, Olugbenga Solomon Oduyale 

28 was observed by a California Highway Patrol (CHP) Officer driving erratically, drifting across 
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1 lanes oftraffic. The Officer pulled Olugbenga Solomon Oduyale over and observed a wooden 

2 billyclub and two brown prescription bottles without prescription labels on them in his car. 

3 Olugbenga Solomon Oduyale was in possession of the controlled substances Vicodin and Xanax 

4 illegally without a valid prescription and the controlled substances were in containers without 

proper labeling. Olugbenga, Solomon Oduyale was arrested for possession of controlled 

6 substances and a dangerous weapon. 

7 31. Once Olugbenga Solomon Oduyale was arrested,.the officer searched Olugbenga 

8 Solomon Oduyale and found more prescription medicines which were identified as Viagra, 

9 Floxin, Naproxen, and Levaquin. Olugbenga Solomon Oduyale also had $968.00 in cash in his 

pocket and $3,734.00 in cash in the trunk ofhis car. 

11 32. From approximately January of2003 until approximately March of2005, Olugbenga 

12 Solomon Oduyale worked as the Pharmacist-in-Charge at Palo Verde Hospital Pharmacy (PVH 

l3 Pharmacy) in Blythe, California. 

14 33. On or about March 11, 2004, the Board conducted an inspection ofPVH Pharmacy. 

The inspection revealed that Olugbenga Solomon Oduyale failed to keep accurate and complete 

16 records of the acquisition and disposition of controlled substances at PVH Phannacy. Olugbenga 

17 Solomon Oduyale did not have a written quality assurance program at PVH Pharmacy. 

18 Olugbenga Solomon Oduyale did not have a Drug Enforcement Agency (DEA) Inventory at the 

19 PVH Pharmacy. Most drug deliveries at PVH Pharmacy were received and signed for by non-

pharmacists. As Pharmacist-in-Charge, Olugbenga Solomon Oduyale should not have permitted 

21 non-pharmacists to accept drug deliveries. 

22 34. On or about April29, 2005, Accusation Case No. 2733 was filed before the Board 

23 against Olugbenga Solomon Oduyale. A copy of Accusation Case No. 2733 is attached hereto as 

24 Exhibit 1 and is incorporat~d by reference. 

35. Following a hearing on February 6, 7, and 8, 2006, in Accusation Case No. 2733, a 

26 decision was rendered against Olugbenga Solomon Oduyale revoking his pharmacist's license,· 

27 with the revocation stayed and probation imposed for three years on terms and conditions. The 

28 decision was to become effective on August 31, 2006, but Olugbenga' Solomon Oduyale filed a 
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Petition for Reconsideration. The Board granted reconsideration solely on a condition of 

probation concerning supervision. The Board rendered a decision after reconsideration allowing 

Olugbenga Solomon Oduyale to supervise ancillary personnel, including registered pharmacy 

technicians. The decision became effective on December 21,2006. The three year probationary 

term was completed on December 20, 2009. The decision was rendered imposing discipline for 

the following violations based upon the facts set forth in paragraphs 29 through 33 above: 

a. Dispensing prescription drugs in containers not labeled as legally required; 

b. Failure to provide records of filled prescriptions at PVH Pharmacy and all records 

required for inspection by the Board's inspector; 

c. Failure to have all records 6f sale, acquisition, or disposition of dangerous drugs open 

to inspection by the Board inspector at all times during business hours; 

d. Failure to have a quality assurance program in place at PVH Pharmacy when 

inspected on March 11, 2004; 

e. Failure to have an accurate and complete written DEA inventory at PVH when 
 

inspected on March 11, 2004; and 
 

f. As Pharmacist-in-Charge, regularly allowing non-pharmacists to receive and sign for 

drug delivers made to PVH Pharmacy. 

FIRST CAUSE FOR DENIAL OF APPLICATION 
 

(Unprofessional Conduct- Dispensing Dangerous Drugs Without Labeling) 
 

36. Respondent's application is subject to denial under Code sections 4300 (c) and 4301 

(o) for violation of section 4076 (a) in that Olugbenga Solomon Oduyale dispensed prescription 

drugs (dangerous drugs) in containers not labeled as legally required, as set forth above in 

paragraphs 28 to 35. 

SECOND CAUSE FOR DENIAL OF APPLICATION 

(Unprofessional Conduct- Failure to Provide Records) 

37. Respondent's application is subject to denial under Code sections 4300 (c) and 4301 

(o) for violation of sections 4081 and 4332 in that Olugbenga Solomon Oduyale failed to provide 

to the Board's inspector records of all filled prescriptions at the PVH Pharmacy and all requrred 

10 

STATEMENT OF ISSUES CASE NO. 4009 



1 

2 

3 

4 

5 

6 

7 

8 

9 

10 

11 

12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

17 

18 

19 

20 

21 

22 

23 

24 

25 

26 

27 

28 

records during the inspection on or about March 11, 2004 and for a reasonable time thereafter 

when requested by the Board inspector, as set forth above in paragraphs 28 to 35. 

THIRD CAUSE FOR DENIAL OF APPLICATION 

(Unprofessional Conduct- Failure to Maintain Accurate Records and 
Complete Accountability of Inventory) 

38. Respondent's application is subject to denial under Code sections 4300 (c) and 4301 

(o) for violation of section 4081 as well as CCR section 1718 in that Olugbenga Solomon 

Oduyale failed to have all records of sale, acquisition, or disposition of dangerous drugs open to 

inspection by the Board inspector at all times during business hours at PVH Pharmacy, including 

complete accountability for all inventory, as set forth above in paragraphs 28 to 35. 

FOURTH CAUSE FOR DENIAL OF APPLICATION 
 

(Unprofessional Conduct- Failure to Implement Quality Assurance Program) 
 

39. Respondent's application is subject to denial under Code sections 4300 (c) and 4301 

(o) for violation of section 4125 as well as CCR section 1711 in that Olugbenga Solomon 

Oduyale failed to have a quality assurance program in place at PVH Pharmacy when inspected on 

or about March 11, 2004, as set forth above in paragraphs 28 to 3 5. 

FIFTH CAUSE FOR DENIAL OF APPLICATION 

(Unprofessional Conduct- Failure to Maintain DEA Inventory) 

40. Respondent's application is subject to denial under Code sections 4300 (c) and 4301 

(o) for violation ofCCR section 1718 and CFR sections 1304.04 and 1304.11 in that Olugbenga 

Solomon Oduyale failed to have an accurate and complete written or printed DEA Inventory at 

PVH Pharmacy when inspected on or about March 11, 2004, as set forth above in paragraphs 28 

to 35. 

Ill 
 

I I I 
 

Ill 
 

Ill 
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SIXTH CAUSE FOR DENIAL OF APPLICATION 
 

(Unprofessional Conduct- Allowing Non-Pharmacists to Receive Drug Purchases) 
 

41. Respondent's application is subject to denial under Code sections 4300 (c) and 4301 

(o) for violation of section 4059.5(a) in that as Pharmacist-in-Charge at PVH Pharmacy, 

01ugbenga Solomon Oduyale regularly allowed non-pharmacists to receive and sign for drug 

deliveries made to PVH Pharmacy, as set forth above in paragraphs 28 to 35. 

SEVENTH CAUSE FOR DENIAL OF APPLICATION 

(Acts if Done by Licentiate are Grounds for Discipline) 

42. Respondent's application is subject to denial under Code sections 480(a)(3)(A) in that 

Olugbenga Solomon Oduyale has done acts that if done bya licentiate would be grounds for 

suspension or revocation ofhis license, when Olugbenga Solomon Oduyale dispensed 

prescription drugs (dangerous drugs) in containers not labeled as legally required in violation of 

section 4076(a); failed to provide to the Board's inspector records of all filled prescriptions at the 

PVH Pharmacy and all required records during the inspection on or about March 11, 2004 and for 

a reasonable time thereafter when requested by the Board inspector in violation of sections 4081 

and 4332; failed to have all records of sale, acquisition, or disposition of dangerous drugs open to 

inspection by the Board inspector at all times during business hours at PVH Pharmacy, including 

complete accountability for all inventory, in violation of section 4081 as well as CCR section 

1718; failed to have a quality assurance program in place at PVH Pharmacy when inspected on or 

about March 11, 2004 in violation of section 4125 as well as CCR section 1711; failed to have an 

accurate. and complete written or printed DEA Inventory at PVH Pharmacy when inspected on or 

about March 11,2004 in violation ofCCR section 1718 and CRF sections 1304.04 and 1304.11; 

and regularly allowed non-pharmacists to receive and sign for drug deliveries made to PVH 
 

Pharmacy in violation of Code section 4059.5(a), as set forth above in paragraphs 28 to 35. 
 

I I I 
 

I I I 
 

I I I 
 

Ill 
 

12 

STATEMENT OF ISSUES CASE NO. 4009 



5 

10 

15 

20 

25 

2 
 

3 
 

4 
 

6 
 

7 
 

8 
 

9 
 

11 
 

12 
 

13 
 

14 
 

16 
 

17 
 

18 
 

19 . 
 

21 
 

22 
 

23 
 

24 
 

26 
 

27 
 

28 
 

PRAYER 

WHEREFORE, Complainant requests that a hearing be held on the matters herein alleged, 

and that following the hearing, the Board ofPharmacy issue a decision: 

1. Denying the application of Calmex Special Services, Inc. dba Cal-Mex Phanp.acy for 

a pharmacy permit. . _· .\ . 

2. Taking such other and further actio as deemed necessary a tl proper. 

DATED: ______,5=-+/~/0~/...!....!.JI:..____ .d 
Executi e fficer 
Board of: armacy 
Department ofConsumer Affairs 
State of California 
Complainant 

SD2011800135 
80480215.doc 
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EXHIBIT 1 

ACCUSATION CASE NO. 2733 
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.b.JLl.. LUCK 'r'£H. Alll>rr>t·y Cenenll 
uf !ht .Slulc: of CaJiforni<J 

SL!.SAI\ FITZGERALD, St<llt Bar J...:u. :J J2278 
Depuly Allorney General 

CuJjfurnia Dep~trlrnenl uf.lustice 
1JO \Nes1 "A" Stn::tl, Suitt I'IUCJ 
Sc.tn Diego, CA 92 J (JJ 

P. 0 ..Box 8516(> 
 
s~m Diego, CA 921 BG-52(>() 
 
Tdepbune: ((>'19) (J45-2.0(>CJ 
 
Facsirnile: ((!19) (J45-20Cll 
 

Atlorneys for Cornpluinan1 

BEFORE THE 
 
BOARD OFPHAR.l\1ACY 
 

DEPARTM.ENT OF CONSUMEH AFFAJ RS 
 
STATE OF CAL1.FORN1A 
 

ln tl1e Matter of the Accusation Against: 
Case No. 2733 

OLUGBENGA SOLOMON ODUYALE, R.PH 
2209 E 27th St 
Yttma, A2 85365 ACCUSATJON 

Ori.ginal Pharmacist License No. RPH 42719 

Respondent. 

Complainan1 alleges: 

Patricia :F. Hc.irri~ (CoiTlplainant) brings lhis Accu!>atiun solely in her ofricial 

C.i.!pacily a~ the Executive Officer of lhe Bourd of Pbarrm1cy, Depar!.rnenl of C.o.nsurner AITairs. 

On ur ahoul Au gus! 8, I()~(). the Board of Pht.IJTrwcy issuecl Ori gi nul Vharm uc.:isl 

License Number RVH 42719 'to Olugbcnga Solornon Ucluyule, .I(JYJ-1 (Rtsponclenl). The 01·iginal 

Vhurm<Jc.:ist License was in :full furc,c ;.llld e.f!'ec·t al t.dltim<::!:> Je::lt·\'ttnl It> the charges brough1 herein 

and ,,·ill expire on October 31. 2UUC>. unless renewed. 

.J Uf.Z l SD J C'T 1 0 N 
 
.., 
 
..). 

This /\cc.:usalion is brought before Lhe: E:'.omcl1.Jf Pharmacy (Buctrcl). Depanmcn1 uf 

ConsuJTit:r Affairs. under the authority of the following se.ctiuns uf Lhe C<llifornia Bu<;int:~;s & 

http:E:'.omcl1.Jf
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'J
-' 

5 

(, 

7 

(1 

0 

9 

Hl 

11 

12 

14 

1 5 

16 

J7 

1~ 

2U 

21 

'l') 

2?1 

24 

25 

2<) 

2! 

2b 

/-\. Section L\3(J1 uflht Code Sli.!U:::s: 

"The bourcl ShLd\ Uikt Ll<.:liun cl);!,clins\ any hu\c1er c>J· a \icenst: WJ1o is 
 

guilty uf unprofessional cuiidue\ ur wh(JSt lieense has been procured 
 

by fraud or rnisrepresentLilion or issue::cl by mi:.;lake. Unprnfessional 
 

c.oncluc\ 'shall incJuc\e, hu\ i~. IIU\ limitec\ 1o, any uf the l'ulluw i ng: 
 

"{f) Tl1e commissior1ufany a.c.l involving moralturpituc1e cJisl1onestv, · 1 

fn.tu.d, dec.:.eit, OJ corruption, whetl1er the u.c.:.1 is committed} 1l the course of relations LtS a 

licensee or otberwise, and whether tbe act is a fel oi1y or mi. sc1 ei11e:mor or DOt. 

" 

"(j) Tbe violatio11 of any oftbe statutes of this state or ·of tbe ·united States regulatil1g 

controlled SL1.bstances and da11gerous drugs. 

"( o) ViolatiDg or attempting to vio1ate, directly or indirect] y, or assist.i11g in or al.;etting tl1e 

violatim1 of or conspiring to violate ~ny pro•l'isioD or term ofthi.s chapter or ofthe 

a:pplicab)e federal ancl slate laws ancl regulations governi11g p}mrmacy, i11cluding 

regulations eslab1ished by th.e board . 

. "(q) Enga~ing in uny conduct thai subve1·Ls or atlempts lo su\werl an inves\.igalion oflhe 

Boarc.\. 

Jl 

Sec.tio·n 4U59 of the Cu(\e stale~;. in per\im.:nl pml. "Lh<.tl <I pr.::rsun may nol furnish l:J ·'· 

any dan~e1·oLn; c\ru);!. cxce.JJlupon lhe prescription of a physkian, clenlisl. podi<tlrisl. oplomelrist, 

or \'t:lerinarian. 

C. Scclicrn 4US9.5 slules in perlinen\ pa.rl: 

"(a) Except as olhenvise proYided in lhi:, chapter. dan~crous drug:::. or dangerous cle\'ic.es 

llli:ty only \·l·~· mch:recl b) un emily licensed by \he board <md must be cleliverecl \o lhe lic.t:nsec\ 

prr:::mises ancl signed for and rec.eivecl by t\·te pharmacist-in-charge: ur. in his or her absence. 

http:fn.lLl.el
http:cle\'ic.es


 







·another plt<:trrmtcis\ designt:cl b~' the phar.rrwcisl-itH . .:h:.trge. Whert <.1 licensee .is pet·miuecllO 
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II 

D. Section 40(>0 uf"lhe Coc.lt slates: 

"1'-lc.• person shall po~:sess 'IllY conlrollecl ~~ubsl.ance. except that fmnishecl Lu <I 

person upon The presc.riptiun uf a physician .. (\entist. pucliil'lrisl, ur vel.erimtrimt.. 

or furnished pursuant 1.o a drug, order issL1ecl by a cerliiiecl nun.;e-midwi!'e 

pursm1ntlo Sectio:n :274(J.501, a nurse prw:.:tit·ioner pursuuntlu Section 2B3Ci.·l, 

or a physician assistant pursuC:.tntLo Seclion 3502.1. This section sl1::.tl.l.not 

app'l y to tl1e possession of any colltrollecl subsli::lnce by ~~ man ufaclu rer, 

wbolesa1er, pbannacy, physician, podiatrist, dentist, veterinar.ian, certified 

1mrse-mid1;vife, nurse pr~ctitioner, or physician assistant, wheD i11 stocl( in 

co:1tainers correctly labeled ·witl1 tl1e mtme <:md address of tl1e supplier ·Or 

producer. 

"Notbi11g i11 th)s section au.tborizes a certified nurse-miclwife, nurse practitioner~ <:1 

or a 1Jllysic)an assistant to order his or her mvn stock of chmgerous drugs an.cl devices." 

E. Section 4076 ofthe Code states in pertinent part: 

"(a) A 1)ham1a.cist shall not dispense any prescription except .in t1 container that 

meels the requiremenls of state ancl feclera\]a\"' ancl is COJTGctly labeled '"'.itJ1 a.ll oftbe 

following ... 

II 

F. Section ~1332 slat~..:s: 

"f,ny persu.n who fails. n~.::glecls. or refuses \o maintain 'the:.· records required byS~:.:clion 

4()~1 ur who, when c.~tlkclupon by 'Ill authurit..ed u!Ticer or member of\be:: buard. fails. n<::glec\s. 

or rel'usec.1 to procluc.e the rewrc\s witl1in a rcasum1b.le:: time. or who willfully produces or fur.nishe~; 

rec.orcl.o. tl1al are false. is guilty uf <t.misclemeanor." 

Ci. SecLion 4\25 stu\cs in perLinenl pan: 
 

"(a) Every pharmac~' shCJII establish a qLtalit")· assuranct JHU~.r<tm tha\ shalL a\ u 
 

http:rcasu\lLlb.le








min inJum. clocurnem meclicaliun errors i:lllribut<:lbk in whult' or in pan, \u the pharmacy or it~ 

~· person.nel. The vurpuse uftht·qucllity i.\SSLII'itnCt prt,grarn shi:tll bt lo assess eJTOT!;; lhLilllCCL\r in 

3 tht phurnHIC)' in c1ispensing or rurnishir1g prescripti011 m~dic<llilrns su tl1<:11 the phmmacy rnay w1:.e 

.q approprialt uclion lu prevent <I recurrence. 

II II 

5 

H. Secliun 125.3 uflhe Code pruvides, i.n peninen1 pr.LrL, llial tl1t Buarc.lmay request 

7 Lllc administrative l::.t\"-' judge Lo c1i.rec1 a licenliat.e founcllo have commill.ed a violation or 
 

8 
 v·iolr.Ltiom: oflhe lic.ensin~ actlo pi.lY u sumnol to exceecl the reasone:1ble cosL~; oflhe investigation 
 

g 
 and el1forcement of tl·1e case. · 

4. This Accusation is c:Ll.so brcrughl under the au.tl1ority of tlx· fo1lowing sections of ]O 

lJ t11e California Be<Lltb & Safety Code (H&S Code): 

A. H&S Code section 11171 states that "[11]0 person sha11 prescribe,. administer, 12 

or furnisl1 a controlled substance except und.er the conditions and 1n the manner 13 
 

14 provided ill this division." 

B. B.&S Code sectim1 11173 states in perl'.inent part: 
 

16 

1 5 

"(a) No person shall obtai11 or attempt to obtain controlled subs~ances, or 

·procure or cLttempl to procure t11e a.c\min:istration of or prescription for c.oDLrol\ed 17 

substances, (1) by fraud, deceit, misrepresenta.lion, or su.bt.erfu):!,e... 

JC) 

20 (' l-1 &S Cucle section 'll350(a) ~;Lal.es lh<11 il is .i \legal lu posse~;s narcotic Sc..hedule .I 

2·1 conlrurlccl substances or any narcutic drll)j!> in Schr::.clu.le!> .ll, Ill, IV, 01' V wilhuul <.1 legitimate 

"'.:....'_) . . ' prcscnpt1on. 

__;:, D. H&S C:ode section 11 ?S~.(<I) ::;Lutes in pc.rlinc.:.nl pu1-1 Lhat it is ilh:ga1Lulranspurl. 

24 sell, furnis11. admini~;lcr. give <.IW'<l)' ur at1.e.mp1lo do uny of Lhusc thillgs with respec.tlo any 

25 rmn;utic contrul1ed substance~. unksc.; upon u kt;itimal.t:: wr.!\.len prescription. 

l~i&S Cocle section 'l\377(<.1) stales in pertinen1 par\ 1ha1 it is ilkgal \o possess any E. 

...,, nun-11arc.utic contru1kc1 subsl<IJH..:e wit\1ou1 ;:~ kgi1.111la\e p.rescrip\io.n. ..:.J 

.:if 

http:pc.rlinc.:.nl
http:Schrxlu�lel>.ll
http:11lld.er
http:cDmmil1.ed


-) 

.3 

5 

() 

7 

,, 
0 

9 

10 

) ) 

· 12 

13 

14 

15 

16 

·17 

19 

20 

21 

l') 
-~.1 

27 

F J:l&.S Cuclt section l 137W<~.J SL<:tlcs in peninem pan thcL1 i1 is illegi:ll Lo transpurl. 

;;ell. furnisi1, aclminisl.t.:r, giw m\'<.ty or anempl 1t> clu any ofthose things wilh respec! lu any nun-

m1rc.ulic: t:.U!Ylrullecl subsu.mces unles,<; upun <.1 leg,iLirrmlt· prescription. 

5. This J\c;eusc.tlion i~. iilsu broughl uncler t1lt' authorily llf the following seeLiom: uf 

Ti Lie JC1, CaliJ'orni•t Cuck ufRegulaLiuns (CC.R): 

A Set:tion J 71 J establishes the requil·t:menLs for ll phLLnTtacy's quality assuranc;e 

program. 

B. 	 Seetion '1718 slates: 
 

. . 
 
'"Current bwenlory' as used ir1 Sections 4081 ancl4332 of Hte Busine::ss and Professions 

Code shall be considered to include complete accountability for all clangemLLs drugs 

handled by every licensee emtmera.tecl .il.1 Sections 4081 <mel 4332. The controlled 

substances inventories required by T1t1e 21, CFR, SectimJ 13 04 shaD be available for 

inspectio11 upon recp.Lest for at least 3 years after the date of t11e illventory." 

6. 
This Accus<ttion also Iefers to Tjtle 21: Code of Federal RegLLlation, sectiqn J304. · 

et seq. V·lhich provides the DEA requirements concerning controlled substr:l11ce record 

keepiiiglinvenlories. 

DRUGS 

7. The foJJowing are all dangerous drugs, pursuant Lo B LLS.iness & Profess.ions 

Cock section 4022 ancl are also controllt::cl substances,. if so .iclcnli:fie.cl belo'"''. 

. A. "C:h;ycontin,'' a brand narne fur m;yc.oclone, is a ScJ1cdu·le J] cun!.rollecl subslance 

under :H &S Code:· secLiu.tJ ] 1U55(b)( ·1 )(N); 

B. .H yclroc;oclone, a nurcolic drug, wilh acetamimtplwn 5/5UO mg, a \m.mcl nmne for 

which is "Vicudin," is <l Sche::cluk· JJJ cun!rolkcl ~ntbs1.<:tnct uncler H&S Code 

st:cliun II ()5(>( e.H L\); 

C. Uepo-ksloslerune is a male: hunnone ancl is a Scheel u It J.l'l cumrulh::cl substance 

under H&.S Cock secliun 1-I U5(J(l)i30); 

D. ···Y... cl<dar,'· "brcmd name for k.etamine, is a Sch~,:;c1u Je JJ J conLrolkd subsl<tnce under 

1-l&S Cock secLion 1J1)5(>!!,!.):. 

http:secLiu.tJ


f. ''\'icuclin ES,'' cl brand n~tmt: fur hydrclcudone 7.5 mg with .toYAP. i~. <~Schedule 

')· llJ cumru\ \eel c:ubslunct uncler .1-J &S Code ~;eeL ion 1] (J5Cl{ tJUI J; 

F. ·'Tylenol \·V/Cudeine," <:t brancl narne J'ur /\YAP wilh c.ucleine. is <:1 Sclteclule \.1] 

cuntrullt:c1 subsLmtcc under .H&S Cuck ~,;t:cLiun 1 I U5(J( t:)(2); 

5 ('._I. "Xanax," a brcmcl mum: for alpraz.olam, is a Schedule IV conll'ulled subslmice 

(, unc.\yr H&S C.:Dclt section 'J 1U57(cl)(1 ); 

7 J-J. "J\ ti \'an," a bri:md name foT Jorazcpam, is a Scl1eclul e JV c.onlro lied substance 

u1·Jcler H.&S Cocle secLiun J 1U57(cl)( 16); 

J. "Luminal,'' a brand narne fur phenobarbita-l, is a Sclteclule IV controlled l:iUbstunce 

1(J unc\erli&S Code sectio11 J J 057(c1)(26); 

]] "Phenerg<m vdCodeine," a brand name for promethazine witb codeine, is a 

12 Schedule V controlled substa11ce lmder H&S Code sectio11 1] 058(c)(] ); 

13 K. "Soma" is a cl<mgerous drug Ltncler Business & Professions Code section 4022; 

14 L. "LLl]Jr011" is a dangerous drug under Bu.siness & Professions Code section 4012; 

1 5 M. "Epogen" is a dangerous drug Lmder Bus·iness & Profession.s CocJe section 4022; 

16 N. "Viagra" is a dmJgerous drug under Business & Professions Code section 4022; 

0. "Naprosyn" is a dangerous drug under Business & :Professions Code section 402:?.~ 

'P. "L.evaquin'' is a dangemus drug under Bu0iness & Professions Code sec.lion 402~; 

'19 Q. "Ficrx in" is a clan~erous dmg under Business & Professions Cocle section 4022; 

20 CHARGES A~U 1-\l_,LEGATlONS Rl~ 2002. lNCJDfi:.T\)T 

21 8. On or aboul Dec.ernber 3'], 2002, V,e!)pondenl, WclS stc.rpped by Lhe Calif'mnia 

II J--lishwuy l'<1~rul while clrivin~. on lnlc;rsl<.llt: 8. He wus !"cluncl lu h<:1Vt in hi~~ pot;sessiunumi c.onlrul 

23 1wo arnbt:r. unlt~bekd drug presc.riJ~li(Jn bo1llcs, um: of which ht· inclicalecl cunluirH.:cJ "Vic.oclin" 

and Lht· uiher "Xan<t>:.'' bulh for <t "Mrs. TZobin~lln-" Wlten the highw<ty p<tlrlllm~m nulccl <~ nriL:l~' 

25 ul' diHereni pills in the c.;onlainer Responc1,.::n1 iclcnti.lied a~, haYing.>: ana:: in it Respond en\ lhen 

2G also said tl1a1 il conLainec\, acldiLionally, Vii:.lbra, <ITI <.lllLibic~lic and Clarilin. ln facl. lhe bollles 

C.Olllained Vicod.lll in um: bonk ancl )~amP. mi:·~·=c1 with \'ia~m, F\oxin. i<apro:·:in ~mel ?.-5 

unicle:nliftecl pilh. in lht oLher. 



 

9. ,L\ further sc:arch Lincu1·ered the fullov>'.iJJg: 

~) an i:illlbtr unlubelec] prescriptiun cuntainer with !C)~-·~ Viagratablt::ts; 

:jo a st<ilecl bunlt: of Vi<1gra; 

2 whitt bonles cunt<1ining l.J4 anc.l lOU Naprm:en tub lets; 

:jo an aJT.Jber pre!;criptiun COJ1lainer \abe1ed only "Leva.quin" w.i1l1 5 pjJJs; 5 

:Jo a s i l ver-:Fo i1\·'/ 1·app eel care\ c.on La ini ng 8 u n icl en ti"Ji ec1 pills; 
 

:Jo a golcl-foi.l wrapped card containing 4 uniclenti:fiecl white pills; 
 

(J 

7 

:J: lll.is<.;e\laneuus pills in Respcrndent's po<.;ket: 4 Viag,ra, 2 Nliproxen, J Flox.in, ~mel 

one uniclentiJiecl p.ill; 

1CJ $4,702.00 in cash. $%8.00 in .Respomle.nt's poc.ket. 

11 10. Respo11clen1 could not produce <:my prescriptions for ar1y drugs for "M.rs 

12 Robinson. 11 

13 . 11. Respondent 'vVas anesled <md 11 lVliranclized," after V•lhicl1 he told the highway 

14 patrolmaD that the Vicodi11 'vvas for a "Don Brenizer" and the Xai1ax for "Mrs. Robinson." 

12. Respom1en1's tl1e11-employer, Rite-Aid 'Plmrmacy#5675 in Calexico, Californi.a, 
 

1 6 
 

15 

di cl nol know Resriomle111 hacl taken <my c:lf tl1e above dmgs. 
 

1 7 
 )3. Responclen\ admitted that he v,,as taking the Leva.quilJ himself aml did nc.il have a 

\8 prescri-ption for it. 

1L\. On or about December 30,2002, Respondent frauclulently crea.tecl a prescripti01i 

20 for Donald l3reniz.er r·ur 3() lablels ofhydnHXlclone with J.\PAF' 5/SUO rng,. using lhe m1111e o:l'a 

cloc.lor in Lhe area. That cloctor knew nuLhing ur lh<:: pre~;cription ancl\·wcl never lreated Donald 

~~~ re ni/..e.r. 

:n 

,., -,
.!.:.) FJRST C/\l.lSE FOJ.I. DlSClPJ.,lNE, 

(Unpru'l'l'.ssiunnl C::onclucl: .llleg<ll J>osses.siu11 ul'\'it:\Jclin) 

25 15. .Respondent i~·. subject to disciplinary i.\ction under sectipn 4301 (uJ in conjunction 

:-:.6 wit.h section 4(l(l(J and, ~;epi:lrately. under section 4301 \.i) in conjunction with H&.S Cocle section 

27 l13)(J(a). in that h•;: i\lc~a\\y possessed hyclruc.udone w·1th l'Yl\P, a~. more parLicu\urly alleged in 

~E; p::u·;.t~raphs (;-14 above unc1 ·lllcorporale.cl herein 11y reference. 

http:4,702.00
http:lllcorporale.cl
http:l3reniz.er


SLCOND CAUSE FOR UISCJJ.>UNC 

(Unprui'essiunal Cunclucl: Jlkg<ll Jlussessiun uf.Xanax) 

J (J. Rcspunden1 i~ suhjccl Lu disciplinary <tc.1iun uncler sect.iun L13UJ(o) in cunjunt:tiun 

::J. wilh sectiun 4UCJ0 and. separalely, under st::c\run 4301 (j) in GlHtjunctiort with J-I&S Code section 

5 1] ::.77(a) iD lhal he illegally possesst:d )~anux. as .more particularly c.tlltgecl in pan.1gruphs 8-14 

6 <.tbuve and incurpcmtted herein by n~ference. 

7 Tl-LIRD CAUS!~ FOJ:Z D.lSCIJ>Lil\i.E 
 

t:: 
 (Unprofessional Concluct: l.llegal Preseribing or Furnishing, uf Controlled Substances) 
 

9 
 17. Resp011denl is sub_jec\ to disciplinary action under section 4301 (j) in c.onjunction 

10 witl1 B.&S Cocle secti011 11171 .in thal he illegally prescribed ~rnd/or furn.ishecl hyclrococlone witl1 

11 AP AP and Xanax i11 violation of the CL1ifornia Healtb & Safety Code,. as more particularly 

12 alleged i11 paragraphs 8- J4 above and incorporated herein by reference. 

13 FOURTH CAUSE FOR DlSClFLINE 

14 (Unprofessio11al Conduct: Act of Moral Turpitude,rDishonesty, " 
Fraud, Deceit, or Corruption) 

15 

18. Respondent is subject to disciplinary acti01.1 under section 4301 (f) for acts of 
 

17 
 monL] turpitude, disbonesty, fraucl, deceit; or corruption, as more particularly alleged in 
 

·1 8 paragraphs 8-] 4 above and incorporated herein by reference. 
 

I~ FJFT!.-l CA1JSE FOR l).JSClPLJNE 

'2() ( Uu prufess ion <tl Co 11 dud: Ob !.a in ing Cu 11 tru Iled Sub ::;tan ce~ l.Jy 
 
"F1"aucl~ Dt~ceil, Misn:presentaliun or Subterfuge) 
 

2\ 

22 RespunckJTl .is subject to c\iseiplimtry uclicJ.n umkr section 4301(j) iTl conjunction 

23 \'\'i1.h H&S Cude }:;ectiun 1·11 73(<~) in \hal he ubtaineclllydruc.uc\une \"'ilh API-\Y and ).:amo: by 

') 
-'-~ 

A fraud, clec.cil. misrepn:.~sentalion or sublerrugt:, a~; more p;_tl"l.tcular\y i:illegecl·irl puragmpl1s g-14 

25 abo\'t: and incorporated herein hy n::ference 

:' !! 
 

2 7 /if 
 

.. 2R •'i: 



 

 

 

S.IXJ'H CAUSE FOI~ UISCIPLlf\E 

r) (Unpru'l't~s~iunul Cunduct: .llkg~il TnJnspurting uf Cem~ric \'icudin) 

.2U. Re:spunc1en1 is subjec;llO disciplinary ac1iu.n unc1er sec1.iun L\3UHj) in c;unjunctiun 

Li with H&S Cucle :,;eclion J1:~52(~1) in th~11 ht lrc111~:punecl generic Vicuc.lin wilhuul u legilimalt 

5 .Prc::scription, as mort parlicu).~lrly alleged in p<.u·agn.lphf,; 8-'JLI <lbo·vt c.rnd incorporated hert:in by 

(J reJt:J·ence. 
 

7 SEVENTH CAUSE. FOI-l_ D!SCl.l'LINE 
 

t; (Unprofessional ConciUL:t: Jllegal Transporting of Xan ax) 
 

21. .Respondent is subjec1 to clisl:iplinary action under section 4301 (j) in conjunl:lion 

10 witb FJ&S Cocle section J 1379(a) in tha1 be transporl.ecl Xan::r>: witho1.11 a legitimate prescripti011, 

11 as more particularly alleged :in paragraphs 8-14 above and incorporated hereirJ by reference. 

12 EJGBTH r..a.~.'USE FOR DISCiPLINE 

13 (llnpru·fessional Conduct: Furnishing Dangerous Drugs to O:neself \V/0 Prescription) 

14 22. Respondent is subject to disciplinary actiollU.ncler section 4301(o) in co1~unctio.n 

15 witb sect1on4059 i11 that l1e furnished hir.n~elfLevagu·i·n, Viagra, Na.proxen, and Floxin withou\ a 

16 prescription, as more particu) ar1y a11eged i.n paragraphs 8-'J 4 above and i11corporated herein by 

1 7 referen.ce. 

'18 f'HN'f'H CAUSI~ FOR .DlSCJJ>LlT'lE 
 

·19 (Unprofessional Conclud: Dispensing Dangerous Drugs \~'ltlnml Labeling) 
 

23. Responclen! is subjt::c! Lo c.lisl:iplinury ac.tion unc.lt::r section 4301 (o) in conjunuion 

21 wiL'\1 sccliun407(l in.thal he dispensed pre:scripliun cln.lt,!i in conla.incrs nol labeled a! a\.1 or nut 

n labe\l.::.d as legully required, i.IS rnore p::u'lic.ularly <llkgc:cl in pal·c\g,rapl-10 0-·1 4 above LIJlcl 

:n in~orpuralt:clllerein by reference. 
 

:24 Cl-li\RCl~S Al\'D ;\l,l,F~CAl'JOJ\SlZE. 2ll0.:1 Pl-\Al-1.1\'JACY lNSPP:CT'lON/.1\UUIT 
 

25 24. A 1 all Li ~~·1 es rc::lt:.·;an\ to the ch<lrge:. i.lllcl alleg<ll iu ns be:: 1ow and ~.i nee .I i.II'\Lii.ll) 13. 
 

2C.1 2UU3, R~::spunclenl bas beentlv~ pharm::u.:ist-in-ch::1rgr:: (}'\C) ufll-1!:: hospilal pharmacy a\ Palu 

27 \'e-rclt· Hospital in Blythe. California. 

28 !f! 

http:beeJl1.11
http:withol.11
http:transporl.ed
http:i.II'\Lii.ll
http:referen.ce





~~ HospiLal ph<trmacy. Numerous ,·iolalions were uncovered. 

4 {Unprofessional Conclucl: Failurt' 1.u Jlruvi(lt· RL~cords) 

J.~espondent i~ subject to disciplinary etc:lion uncler sec.:Lion 43Cll ((1) ·m c.unjunc:Liun 

G \Vilh 4332 J"ur failure lC1 provide, or tirnely pj·ovide rec.urds \.olht Bu~mrs inspector, as rnure 

7 vartic.ular alleged be1ow: 

["o A. During Lhe inspection and for i:.l reasonable Lime th:::reafler, Respomlenl VIC failed 0 

SJ to provide cerLain invoices for APAP/codeine, carisoprodol, loraz.epam, promeLhazinr::/codeine, 

"] 0 a1JC1 VicodiD ES when requested by the inspector. 

11 B. During the inspection ancl for a reasonable time tbe.reafler, Re~;pomlent PJC failed 

12 to provide acct1rate and complete dispensing records of dangerous drugs ·when requested by the 

13 inspector. 

14 ELEVENTH CAUSE FOR DlSCTPLINE 
 

15 
 (U11professionai Conduct: Failure to Maintain A..ccurate Recorcls 
and Comp1ete Accountability uf Inventory) 

16 

27. Respondent is subject to discilJlill::try a.ction Lincle.r section 43CJ"\ (o) .in c011junction 

:18 

n 

v,.,jt), 408](a) and (b) as well as CCR *17"18 for failure 1.o maintain accurate recorcl.s and complete 

"l ~l <tcc.ountability of inventory, as more p<uticular alleged below: · 
 

20 .1\esponclcnl failed Lo m<~inl.aiJl r.tc.curale .records of ac.quis.IL·ion and d'1spos.iLiun of 
 

21 
 · conlrol.lecl substances at Palo Vcrc.le l·toSIJila·l, including complde <:tCCCilllllabilily for all invenlury 

n during!.\ specific audit periucl for c.arisoproclol, lora·;Jepi:.\111 and pllcnoharh"rtal. 
 

23 TWP:LFTH Ct\ USE FOP. nlSCl PI J 1'\Ji: 
 

:!.L\ (Unprufes~.iional C\.Jncluc.l: F~tilun \.u lmplt::.ITlt:nl Qu~diiy As~uraltcc Prugram) 
 

20. .Respondent is ::;ubjec\ lu disc.tplinary acliun under section L\3()"1 (o) in c.unjuncliun 

2G \:vith 4125 and CCJ\ ~17·1 J in Lba\ on March l J, 2UU4, Responclcr:rl c.lid nu1l1ave <: quali1y 

21 assuranct· pn~g.ram in p1act· a\ Palo \ierde hospil.al. as n::.quire:cl tN l<~w. 

http:phcl"loharh'l'1.al
http:hospil.al


 

 

·rl-JJ.RTECNTl-l C:ALSL FOH .UJSCli'Llf'\L 

') (Unprofessional Cuncluet: failure iu .IVlainlaitlDE.~ ln\en!ury) 
 

Responclenl is subject \o cl.iscip\irwry ac.liun uncler st.cliun 43U.\ (o) in cunjunc1ion· 
 

wit.h CCJ~ \il 7] g und ·CFH ~:1 J(J4 el E;eq. in !ha1 on M<m.:h \1, 20U-4, l.:esponclem c\iclnul h::.tvt' u 

DEA Jnvenlory a\ .hllo Verck hui:ipita1. A perpetual invr:;rtlory Jrmintainecl by the hospital c.\ic\ nul 

4 

5 

.mee1 lht: requiremenLs uf a DEJ\ invenlury ancl was i.n::tccuntlt. G 

FOURTEENTH CAUSE FOH DlSClPLINE 7 

(.• (Unprui"essillt\Hl Conclud: Allowing 1\lun-~>harmnt.:ists Lo .Receive Drug Purt.:llases) u . .. 

30. Respondenl is subject to disciplinary action under seciion 4301 (u). in conjuncLicm 

10 wit]l secli011 4-059.5(a) in tba1 while P]C' ofJ)alo Verde hospitctl ph.armacy he repeatedly allowed 

11 non-pharmac-istf, La receive dmg purchases. . 

12 FIFTEENTH CAUSE FOR DJSCIPLINE 

13 (Unprofessiom1.l Conduct: Act of Moral Turpitude, Dishonesty, 
 
Fraud, Deceit, or Corruption) 
 

14 
 

31. Respondent is spbj ectto disciplinary actj on tmcler section 4301 (f) for c1is11onesty 

16 

15 

in that on or about 1VJ.arcb 11,2004 Respondent knm~'i11gly falsely stated to the Board's ilJSpector 

17 lb.a.t on1y pharmacists received drug deliveries at Palo Verde h.ospjtal. In fa.ct, only abou.\15% of 

J 8 the c\eli\lt::r.ies betwee.n January 13, 2003 and M~trcl1 ] l, 2004 were. received by Responden1 or 

\9 anolher pharmacist. 

21 (Unproft.:::;sio11a\ Cullcluc1.: AU.emp\.ing l.o Subver! <t .\!3-u<ml lnve~tignlion) 

!I 32. \\ ~..:spo nc\c.n 1 is s u b.i e.cl to di~;ci p\in ary ac.l iu n u n <.kr ~;c.:c.l iu n L\ 30 I ( q) lor a!tcmpli n t;, 

23 lu subver\ a 13oard inveslig,ution. <.LS more parlicu\ar\y a\\c.gec\ above in paragraph 3"1, which is 

:24 inc.urpuralec\ h~.::re b)' reference. 

25 i !! 
 

:2G /// 
 

'27 //! 
 

o C· ,.,. .. 
-0 

\ 

http:hospjtal.ln
http:h01:ipi1.a1
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J7 

18 

'19 

20 

21 

-1) ''· 

I'RA YEn. 

V/J-J.IJZIFOJ.Z.E, Cumplc.tinanl requests lhal lt hti:iring bt beJel on the rnmters herein 

<ilk gecL ancltha1 full ow in~ the bectring, lht: .Board of JJhurmuc.:y iss Lll' c.1 decision: 

I. 
IZtvuking or SW:ipem.ling Urigil)al Pliurmacis1.Lic.;el·.lse Number RPJ-J LJ~71 ~J, issued 

to Olughengc.1 Solu.miln Ocluyule. )(jJJ-J; 

01·dering Ul ugb~.::ngu SuJumun C.lliuyule, kJ.>J-J Lo pay lht Buarcl or J>harmucy the 

reusuru.Lble costs ofthe investigation and enforcemen1 of this c;ase, pursu;m11o Business ancl 

Professions Cocle section 125.3; 

J. 
~ 

Taking sucl1 Otlier and further action as deemed necessary and proper. 

DATED: l..~/2.. qJC6 

f~J. ~~-ithJ..,Q... 
PATRJ ClA F. }J.;.\RRJ.S 
Executive Officer 
Bo8rd ofPharnmcy 
DeparL1lleJii of Consumer Affairs 
State of California 
Complui:nant 

27 
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